
(TENTATIVE) BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

September 05, 2023 – 5:00 PM 

Effingham County Administrative Complex 

804 South Laurel Street, Springfield GA 31329 

 

The Georgia Conflict of Interest in Zoning Action Statue (O.C.G.A. §§ 36-67A-1 et seq.) requires disclosure of certain 
campaign contributions made by applicants for rezoning actions and by opponents of rezoning application.  A rezoning 
applicant or opponent of a rezoning application must disclose contributions or gifts which in aggregate total $250.00 or 
more if made within the last two years to a current member of Effingham County Planning Board, Board of Commissioners, 
or other Effingham County official who will consider the application.  The campaign contribution disclosure requirement 
applies to an opponent of a rezoning application who publishes his or her opposition by appearance before the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners or by any other oral or written communication to a member or members of the Planning 
Board or Board of Commissioners.  Disclosure must be reported to the Board of Commissioners by applicants within ten 
(10) days after the rezoning application is filed and by opponents at least five (5) days prior to the first hearing by the 
Planning Board.  Any person knowing failing to comply with these requirements shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 
 
“Individuals with disabilities who require special needs to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities should contact the County Clerk at 912-754-2123 
promptly to afford the County time to create reasonable accommodations for those persons.” 

**PLEASE TURN OFF YOUR CELL PHONE 
 

Agenda 

Watch us live on our YouTube page: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9wRzS6f2pHHZG3IgRk3OUQ 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Invocation 

IV. Pledge to the American Flag 

V. Agenda Approval - Consideration of a resolution to approve the agenda 

VI. Minutes - Consideration to approve the August 15, 2023 work session and regular meeting 
minutes and the August 25-27, 2023 retreat minutes  

VII. Public Comments - Comments shall pertain to the agenda items only.  Should you wish to 
make remarks, clearly state your full name into the microphone before commencing to speak 

VIII. Correspondence - Documents from this meeting are located in the Clerk's Office and on the 
Board of Commissioner's website. 

IX. Consent Agenda - This section shall include all routine items for which there will be no 
discussion.  Should a need arise for a debate, the item can be moved to the appropriate area 
of the agenda. 

1. [2023-465 Purchase]  

Consideration to ratify and affirm purchase of Enterprise vehicle orders for Parks and 
Landscaping Department 

 

 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9wRzS6f2pHHZG3IgRk3OUQ


(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Agenda – September 05, 2023 

2. [2023-466 Agreement] 

Consideration to approve to accept a Termination of the Probation Services Agreement 
between Effingham County and City of Guyton 

3. [2023-467 Agreement] Mark Barnes 

Consideration to ratify and affirm approval of an Agreement for the Stormwater Master 
Plan Y2  

X. New Business 

1. [2023-468 Deed] Chelsie Fernald 

Consideration to approve to accept a Deed for Logistics Parkway road segments and 
right-of-way, easements, utilities infrastructure, and a lift station system at Old Augusta 
Commerce Center Map # 477 Parcel # 15B & Map # 477B Parcel # 1 (Fifth District) 

2. [2023-469 Permit] Katie Dunnigan 

Consideration to approve an Assemblage Permit for Melissa Reagan of Madrac Farms 
to hold a pumpkin patch, corn maze, hayrides, corn pit, slide, playground, and vendors 
event on five weekends, from September 30, 2023 through October 29, 2023, from 10am 
- 6pm, at 580 Ralph Rahn Road. Map 411 Parcels# 19B, 24 in the Fourth District 

3. [2023-470 Purchase Order] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to approve PO 23-REQ-039 for the purchase of a Sewer Bypass Pump 

4. [2023-471 Change Order] Alison Bruton  

Consideration to approve Change Order #5 for Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company 
for the Stormwater Master Plan 

5. [2023-472 Change Order] Alison Bruton 

Consideration to aprove Change Order #2 for StageFront for the AV upgrades at the 
Judicial Complex 

6. [2023-473 Form] Steve Candler 

Consideration to approve a Form for a Fire Inspection Checklist to coincide with Part II 
- Appendix C, Article VII - Administration and Enforcement, of the Effingham County 
Code of  Ordinances 

XI. Reports from Commissioners & Administrative Staff 

XII. Executive Session - Discussion of Personnel, Property and Pending Litigation 

XIII. Executive Session Minutes - No executive session was held, no minutes to be approved. 

XIV. Planning Board - 6:00 pm 

1. [2023-474 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by MRD Partners, LLC / 
Nolan Andrews as Agent for Ronald V. Roberts & Barry Chenkin to rezone 18.5 acres 
located at 4828, 4838 & 4884 McCall Road from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1 to allow for warehouse 
development  Map# 450D Parcel# 4A, 4B & 5 in the Second District 

 

 

2



(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Agenda – September 05, 2023 

2. [2023-475 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by MRD Partners, LLC 
/ Nolan Andrews as Agent for Ronald V. Roberts & Barry Chenkin  to rezone 18.5 
acres located at 4828, 4838 & 4884 McCall Road from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1 to allow for 
warehouse development  Map# 450D Parcel# 4A, 4B & 5 in the Second District 

3. [2023-476 Sketch Plan] Chelsie Fernald 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by Morgan Corp., for a Sketch 
Plan located on Old River Road for "Morgan Corp Office"  zoned B-2 Map# 329 Parcels# 
41B, in the First District 

4. [2023-477 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends denying an application by Brandon Peszynski for a 
variance from Section 74.8, located at 124 Maple Drive,  to allow for class 8 parking at a 
residence, zoned AR-1.  Map# 450D Parcel# 34A in the Second District 

5. [2023-478 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Brandon Peszynski 
for a variance from Section 74.8, located at 124 Maple Drive,  to allow for class 8 parking 
at a residence, zoned AR-1.  Map# 450D Parcel# 34A in the Second District 

6. [2023-479 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by Betty J. New requests a 
variance from Article III, Section 3.3.1(c),  located at 202 Greene Drive, to allow for the 
placement of an accessory structure, zoned AR-1. Map# 465H Parcel# 42B, in the 
Second District. 

7. [2023-480 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Betty J. New requests 
a variance from Article III, Section 3.3.1(c),  located at 202 Greene Drive, to allow for the 
placement of an accessory structure, zoned AR-1. Map# 465H Parcel# 42B, in 
the Second District. 

8. [2023-481 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by George L. Oglesby to 
rezone 3 of 10.85 acres locates at 8869 Highway 21 North from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow 
for the creation of a home site Map# 229 Parcel# 1A, in the Third District 

9. [2023-482 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by George L. 
Oglesby to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres locates at 8869 Highway 21 North from AR-1 to AR-
2 to allow for the creation of a home site Map# 229 Parcel# 1A, in the Third District 

10. [2023-483 Public Hearing] Katie Dunnigan 

The Planning Board recommends approving an application by Michael & Meredith 
Clark for a variance from Section 3.21.1, located at 892 Brogdon Road to allow for 
occupation of a camper/RV during construction of a dwelling, zoned AR-1. Map# 319 
Parcel# 1D, in the Third District 

 

3



(Tentative) Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Agenda – September 05, 2023 

11. [2023-484 Second Reading] 

Consideration to approve the Second Reading of an application by Michael & Meredith 
Clark for a variance from Section 3.21.1, located at 892 Brogdon Road to allow for 
occupation of a camper/RV during construction of a dwelling, zoned AR-1. Map# 319 
Parcel# 1D, in the Third District 

XV. Adjournment 

4



Staff Report 
Subject: Ratification of Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for Parks and 

Landscaping Department and Fire Department 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: P&L and Fire 

Meeting Date: Sept 5, 2023  

Item Description: Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for Parks and Landscaping 

Department and Fire Department 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval for these vehicles.   

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 The vehicles included in this order are as follows: 

o Three 2024 Dodge RAM 2500 4x4 Crew Cabs (P&L) 

 Two of these vehicles will replace current fleet vehicles, and one of 

them is a new vehicle for an added employee.  

o 2023 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 (Fire) 

 This vehicle will replace a current fleet vehicle that has totaled 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Ratification of Approval of Enterprise vehicle orders for Parks and Landscaping 

Department and Fire Department 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Purchasing, Finance, Department Heads 

Funding Source: Budget amendments may be needed if vehicles received this fiscal 

year 

Attachments: 

1. Proposal P1244411 

2. Quote 7438201 

 

5

Item IX. 1.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/11/2023

Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners (505556) Proposal Summary Proposal #: P1244411

Prepared For: Bruton, Alison Quantity: 3

Driver Information Base Lease Payment Initial Charges Billed upon Delivery

Quote Driver ST Use Tax Rate

Expected
Annual
Mileage

Capitalized
Amount

(Delivered
Price per
Vehicle)

Lease
Term

Depr
Rate

Depr
Amount

Lease
Charge1

Monthly
Use Tax

Full
 Maint

 Program2
Additional
Services3

Total Monthly
Payment inc.
Tax and Addl

Services
Book Value at

Term
Initial

Charges4

License,
Registration,
Certain Other

Charges and Tax

Total Initial
Charges Billed
upon Delivery

2024 RAM 2500 Tradesman 4x4 Crew Cab 6.3 ft. box 149 in. WB - US           Bright White Clearcoat  /  Diesel Gray/Black w/Heavy Duty Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat

7416376 TBD GA 0.0000% 12,000 $46,018.00 60 1.3500% $621.24 $243.53 $0.00 $62.13 $926.90 $8,743.60 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7416377 TBD GA 0.0000% 12,000 $46,018.00 60 1.3500% $621.24 $243.53 $0.00 $62.13 $926.90 $8,743.60 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

7416378 TBD GA 0.0000% 12,000 $46,018.00 60 1.3500% $621.24 $243.53 $0.00 $62.13 $926.90 $8,743.60 $0.00 $39.00 $39.00

Total Monthly Payment for 3 vehicles: $2,780.70 Total Initial Charges for 3 vehicles: $117.00

1Monthly Lease Charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor)

2See the following pages for details of Full Maintenance Service

3Additional Services may include Commercial Automotive Liability Enrollment or Physical Damage Management

4Excludes License, Registration, Certain Charges, and Tax

Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicles.

Proposal is subject to Customer's Credit Approval.

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicles covered by this Proposal. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicles under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor
under the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicles.

Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement and agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages in the event Lessee fails or refuses to accept delivery of the ordered
vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

Lessee: Effingham County Board of Commissioners

%signature1 %date1

Signature Title Date

Printed On 08/11/2023 08:41:59 PM Page 1 of 8

August 11, 2023
6

Item IX. 1.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/11/2023

Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners (505556) Capitalized Amount Calculations Proposal #: P1244411

Prepared For: Bruton, Alison Quantity: 3

Quote
Capitalized Prices/
Billed on Delivery

Capitalized Price
of Vehicle1

Certain
Other

Charges

Initial
License &

Registration
Fee

Capitalized
Price

Reduction

Certain Other
Charges on

CPR

Gain
Applied

from Prior
Unit

Certain Other
Charges on

GOP
Tax on

Incentives
Aftermarket
Equipment

Courtesy
 Delivery /

Dealer
Prep Fee

Delivery
Charge

Other
Costs Total

2024 RAM 2500 Tradesman 4x4 Crew Cab 6.3 ft. box 149 in. WB - US           Bright White Clearcoat  /  Diesel Gray/Black w/Heavy Duty Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat

7416376

Capitalized Price $56,018.00 $0.00 ($10,000.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $46,018.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7416377

Capitalized Price $56,018.00 $0.00 ($10,000.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $46,018.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

7416378

Capitalized Price $56,018.00 $0.00 ($10,000.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $46,018.00

Billed on Delivery $0.00 $39.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $39.00

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.

1Capitalized price of vehicles may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer’s invoice. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended for the Lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the
capitalized price of the vehicles.

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed proposal apply to all vehicles listed on the ‘Equity Lease Proposal Summary’ page of this document. In addition, you may incur additional fees required to register and operate these vehicles in accordance with various state,
county, and city titling, registration, and tax laws.

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 08/11/2023 08:41:59 PM Page 2 of 8

7

Item IX. 1.



Open-End (Equity) Lease Proposal Date: 08/11/2023

Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners (505556) Additional Services Details Proposal #: P1244411

Prepared For: Bruton, Alison Quantity: 3

Driver Information
Commercial Automobile

Liability Enrollment Physical Damage Management Full Maintenance Program1

Quote Driver Liability Limit Comprehensive Deductible Collision Deductible Term
Total Contract

Miles
Overmileage

Charge Brake Sets Tires

2024 RAM 2500 Tradesman 4x4 Crew Cab 6.3 ft. box 149 in. WB - US           Bright White Clearcoat  /  Diesel Gray/Black w/Heavy Duty Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat

7416376 TBD 60 60,000 $0.0450 0 0

7416377 TBD 60 60,000 $0.0450 0 0

7416378 TBD 60 60,000 $0.0450 0 0

1The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of the Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this Invoice/Schedule/Quote, all such maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet
Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain separate Maintenance Agreement entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., provided that
such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

%intial1

Initials

Printed On 08/11/2023 08:41:59 PM Page 3 of 8

8

Item IX. 1.



 

VEHICLE INFORMATION:

 

2024 RAM 2500 Tradesman 4x4 Crew Cab 6.3 ft. box 149 in. WB - US

Series ID: DJ7L91

 

 

SELECTED COLOR:

 

 

SELECTED OPTIONS:

 

Quantity: 3

Pricing Summary:

INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $ 49,704.00 $ 52,625.00

Total Options $ 5,317.00 $ 5,775.00

Destination Charge $ 1,995.00 $ 1,995.00

Total Price $ 57,016.00 $ 60,395.00

Exterior: PW7 - Bright White Clearcoat

Interior: X8 - Diesel Gray/Black w/Heavy Duty Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

2GA Quick Order Package 2GA Tradesman NC NC

A61 Tradesman Level 1 Equipment Group $ 180.00 $ 195.00

ADB Protection Group $ 133.00 $ 145.00

AMP Chrome Appearance Group $ 1,519.00 $ 1,650.00

APA Monotone Paint STD STD

CBE 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat Included Included

CDR Front Armrest w/Cupholders Included Included

CFM Rear Folding Seat Included Included

CSJ 2 Way Rear Headrest Seat Included Included

CUY Storage Tray Included Included

DFX Transmission: 8-Speed Auto (8HP75-LCV) STD STD

DME 3.73 Axle Ratio STD STD

DSA Anti-Spin Differential Rear Axle $ 456.00 $ 495.00

ESB Engine: 6.4L V8 Heavy Duty HEMI MDS STD STD

GT2 Power Heated Folding Telescope Mirrors Included Included

JJ1 Trailer Light Check Included Included

JLP GPS Antenna Input Included Included

JVA Manual Adjust 4-Way Driver Seat Included Included

JWA Manual Adjust 4-Way Front Passenger Seat Included Included

LA5 Selectable Tire Fill Alert Included Included

LAY LED Tail Lamps Included Included

LE4 Black Exterior Mirrors Included Included

LEB Exterior Mirrors w/Supplemental Signals Included Included

LEC Exterior Mirrors Courtesy Lamps Included Included

LF2 Power Adjust Mirrors Included Included

LF3 Manual Telescoping Mirrors Included Included

LFD Manual Folding Exterior Mirrors Included Included

LFX Power Adjustable Convex Aux Mirrors Included Included

LNJ Front Fog Lamps (Fleet) $ 180.00 $ 195.00

LNY Mirror Running Lights Included Included

MAF Matte Black Mesh Grille w/Chrome Included Included

MBF Bright Rear Bumper Included Included

MCT Bright Front Bumper Included Included

MFP Chrome Headlamp Bezels Included Included

MNQ Chrome Grille Surround Included Included

NAS 50 State Emissions NC NC

NHJ Exterior Mirrors w/Heating Element Included Included

Printed On 08/11/2023 08:41:59 PM Page 4 of 8

9

Item IX. 1.



 

PW7_01 Bright White Clearcoat NC NC

R05 All R1 Low Radios Included Included

RAA All Radio Equipped Vehicles Included Included

RDG Global Telematics Box Module (TBM) Included Included

RF5 Google Android Auto Included Included

RFL 8.4" Touchscreen Display Included Included

RFP Apple CarPlay Included Included

RS3 Remote USB Port - Charge Only Included Included

RSD SiriusXM Satellite Radio Included Included

RTE Bluetooth Handsfree Phone & Audio Included Included

RTF Integrated Center Stack Radio Included Included

RTM Connectivity - US/Canada Included Included

RTQ 4G LTE Wi-Fi Hot Spot Included Included

TCP Tires: LT275/70R18E OWL On/Off Road $ 272.00 $ 295.00

TX Heavy Duty Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat STD STD

UBD Radio: Uconnect 5 W w/8.4" Display $ 749.00 $ 815.00

WBH Wheels: 18" x 8.0" Steel Chrome Clad Included Included

WKN 18" Steel Spare Wheel Included Included

WMJ Center Hub Included Included

X8_01 Diesel Gray/Black w/Heavy Duty Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench Seat NC NC

X9B SiriusXM Radio Service Included Included

X9E For Details, Visit DriveUconnect.com Included Included

X9H For More Info, Call 800-643-2112 Included Included

XAA ParkSense Rear Park Assist System $ 272.00 $ 295.00

XAN Blind Spot & Cross Path Detection $ 640.00 $ 695.00

XEA Tow Hooks Included Included

XEF Transfer Case Skid Plate Shield Included Included

XHC Trailer Brake Control $ 364.00 $ 395.00

XMF MOPAR Spray In Bedliner $ 552.00 $ 600.00

XRB Integrated Voice Command w/Bluetooth Included Included

Z7F GVWR: 10,000 lbs STD STD

Printed On 08/11/2023 08:41:59 PM Page 5 of 8

10

Item IX. 1.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

 
Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors with turn signal indicator

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Mirror Type:  manual extendable trailer mirrors

      Skid Plates:  skid plates

      Door Handles:  black

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  chrome front and rear bumpers

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Bed Liner:  bed liner

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class V trailering with harness, hitch, brake controller

      Grille:  black w/chrome surround grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  manual air conditioning

      Air Filter:  air filter

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with driver and passenger 1-touch down

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  Keyless Go proximity key

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Emergency SOS:  SiriusXM Guardian emergency communication system

      Voice Recorder:  voice recorder

      Front Cupholder:  front and rear cupholders

      Floor Console:  partial floor console with box

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console

      Glove Box:  glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      IP Storage:  bin instrument-panel storage

      Rear Underseat Storage Tray:  rear underseat storage tray

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  2 12V DC power outlets

Entertainment Features:

      radio  SiriusXM AM/FM/Satellite with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Voice Activated Radio:  voice activated radio

      Speed Sensitive Volume:  speed-sensitive volume

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      Internet Access:  4G LTE Wi-Fi Hot Spot internet access

      1st Row LCD:  2 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  integrated roof antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite halogen headlamps

      Front Fog Lights:  front fog lights

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front reading lights

Printed On 08/11/2023 08:41:59 PM Page 6 of 8

11

Item IX. 1.



      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog appearance

      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Compass:  compass

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Park Distance Control:  ParkSense rear parking sensors

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Blind Spot Sensor:  blind spot

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Oil Temp Gauge:  oil temperature gauge

      Transmission Oil Temp Gauge:  transmission oil temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Bulb Failure Warning:  bulb-failure warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Trunk Ajar Warning:  trunk-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Height Adjustable Seatbelts:  height adjustable front seatbelts

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  manual tailgate/rear door lock

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  Sentry Key immobilizer

      Electronic Stability:  electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints with tilt

      Rear Headrest Control:  3 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 6

      Front Bucket Seats:  front split-bench 40-20-40 seats

      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  4-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  manual reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  manual driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

Printed On 08/11/2023 08:41:59 PM Page 7 of 8

12

Item IX. 1.



      Rear Seat Type:  rear full bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Leather Upholstery:  vinyl front and rear seat upholstery

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      Interior Accents:  chrome/metal-look interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 410-hp, 6.4-liter V-8 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  8-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/11/2023 08:41:59 PM Page 8 of 8

13

Item IX. 1.



Prepared For: Effingham County Board of Commissioners Date 08/22/2023

Bruton, Alison AE/AM KW0/0JB

Unit #

Year 2023 Make Chevrolet Model Silverado 1500

Series Work Truck 4x4 Crew Cab 6.6 ft. box 157 in. WB

Vehicle Order Type In-Stock Term 60 State GA Customer# 505556

$ 43,752.00 Capitalized Price of Vehicle 1

$ 0.00 * License and Certain Other Charges 7.0000% State GA

$ 39.00 * Initial License Fee

$ 0.00 Registration Fee

$ 1,050.00 Other: (See Page 2)

$ 0.00 Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Tax on Capitalized Price Reduction

$ 0.00 Gain Applied From Prior Unit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Gain On Prior

$ 0.00 * Security Deposit

$ 0.00 * Tax on Incentive ( Taxable Incentive Total : $0.00 )

All language and acknowledgments contained in the signed quote 
apply to all vehicles that are ordered under this signed quote.

Order Information

Driver Name Hodges, Clint

Exterior Color (0 P) Red Hot

Interior Color (0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim

Lic. Plate Type Government

GVWR 0

$ 44,802.00 Total Capitalized Amount (Delivered Price)

$ 604.83 Depreciation Reserve @ 1.3500%

$ 252.56 Monthly Lease Charge (Based on Interest Rate - Subject to a Floor) 2

$ 857.39 Total Monthly Rental Excluding Additional Services

Additional Fleet Management

Master Policy Enrollment Fees

$ 0.00 Commercial Automobile Liability Enrollment

Liability Limit $0.00

$ 0.00 Physical Damage Management Comp/Coll Deductible 0 / 0

$ 0.00 Full Maintenance Program  3 Contract Miles 0 OverMileage Charge $ 0.0450 Per Mile

Incl: # Brake Sets (1 set = 1 Axle) 0 # Tires 0 Loaner Vehicle Not Included

$ 0.00 Additional Services SubTotal

$ 0.00 Sales Tax 0.0000%  State 

$ 857.39 Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services

$ 8,512.20 Reduced Book Value at 60 Months

$ 400.00 Service Charge Due at Lease Termination

Quote based on estimated annual mileage of 25,000

(Current market and vehicle conditions may also affect value of vehicle)

(Quote is Subject to Customer's Credit Approval)

Notes

Enterprise FM Trust will be the owner of the vehicle covered by this Quote. Enterprise FM Trust (not Enterprise Fleet Management) will be the Lessor of such vehicle under the Master Open - 
End (Equity) Lease Agreement and shall have all rights and obligations of the Lessor under the Master Open - End (Equity) Lease Agreement with respect to such vehicle. 
Lessee must maintain insurance coverage on the vehicle as set forth in Section 11 of the Master Open-End (Equity) Lease Agreement until the vehicle is sold.

ALL TAX AND LICENSE FEES TO BE BILLED TO LESSEE AS THEY OCCUR.
Lessee hereby authorizes this vehicle order, and agrees to lease the vehicle on the terms set forth herein and in the Master Equity Lease Agreement. In the event Lessee fails or refuses to 
accept delivery of the ordered vehicle, Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to collect damages, including, but not limited to, a $500 disposal fee, interest incurred, and loss of value.

LESSEE Effingham County Board of Commissioners
BY TITLE DATE

* INDICATES ITEMS TO BE BILLED ON DELIVERY.
1 Capitalized price of vehicle may be adjusted to reflect final manufacturer's invoice, plus a pre delivery interest charge. Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any manufacturer rebates and/or manufacturer incentives intended 

for the lessee, which rebates and/or incentives have been used by Lessor to reduce the capitalized price of the vehicle.
2 Monthly lease charge will be adjusted to reflect the interest rate on the delivery date (subject to a floor).
3 The inclusion herein of references to maintenance fees/services are solely for the administrative convenience of Lessee. Notwithstanding the inclusion of such references in this [Invoice/Schedule/Quote], all such 

maintenance services are to be performed by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., and all such maintenance fees are payable by Lessee solely for the account of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., pursuant to that certain 

separate [Maintenance Agreement] entered into by and between Lessee and Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.; provided that such maintenance fees are being billed by Enterprise FM Trust, and are payable at the direction 

of Enterprise FM Trust, solely as an authorized agent for collection on behalf of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc.

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7438201

Printed On 08/22/2023 11:02:47 AM Page 1 of 7

14

Item IX. 1.



Aftermarket Equipment Total

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Running Boards C $ 1,098.00

Legacy Bedliners - Rhino spray-in bedliner C $ 575.00

Custom Equipment - Pulse 3rd brake light flasher C $ 599.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Billed $ 0.00

Total Aftermarket Equipment Capitalized $ 2,272.00

Aftermarket Equipment Total $ 2,272.00

Other Totals

Description (B)illed or (C)apped Price

Transport C $ 1,050.00

Courtesy Delivery Fee C $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Billed $ 0.00

Total Other Charges Capitalized $ 1,050.00

Other Charges Total $ 1,050.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7438201

Printed On 08/22/2023 11:02:47 AM Page 2 of 7

15

Item IX. 1.



VEHICLE INFORMATION:

2023 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 Work Truck 4x4 Crew Cab 6.6 ft. box 157 in. WB - US

Series ID: CK10743

Pricing Summary:
INVOICE MSRP

Base Vehicle $43,821.6 $45,600.00

Total Options $1,533.35 $1,685.00

Destination Charge $1,895.00 $1,895.00

Total Price

SELECTED COLOR:

Exterior: G7C-(0 P) Red Hot

Interior: H2G-(0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim

SELECTED OPTIONS:

CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

1WT Preferred Equipment Group 1WT NC NC

A60 Locking Tailgate Included Included

A68 Rear 60/40 Folding Bench Seat (Folds Up) Included Included

AED Power Front Windows w/Passenger Express Down Included Included

AEQ Power Rear Windows w/Express Down Included Included

AKO Deep-Tinted Glass Included Included

AKP Solar Absorbing Tinted Glass Included Included

AQQ Remote Keyless Entry Included Included

AXG Power Front Windows w/Driver Express Up/Down Included Included

AZ3 40/20/40 Front Split-Bench Seat Included Included

BAQ Work Truck Package $159.25 $175.00

BG9 Rubberized-Vinyl Floor Covering Included Included

BLUE Bluetooth For Phone Included Included

C49 Electric Rear-Window Defogger Included Included

C5W GVWR: 7,000 lbs (3,175 kg) STD STD

CTT Hitch Guidance Included Included

D31 Inside Rearview Mirror w/Tilt Included Included

DLF Heated Power-Adjustable Outside Mirrors Included Included

G7C_01 (0 P) Red Hot NC NC

G80 Auto-Locking Rear Differential $359.45 $395.00

GU6 3.42 Rear Axle Ratio STD STD

H2G_01 (0 I) Jet Black w/Vinyl Seat Trim NC NC

IOR Radio: Chevrolet Infotainment 3 System STD STD

JL1 Integrated Trailer Brake Controller $250.25 $275.00

K34 Electronic Cruise Control Included Included

K47 Heavy-Duty Air Filter Included Included

KW5 220 Amp Alternator Included Included

L3B Engine: 2.7L Turbo High-Output Included Included

MQE Transmission: 8-Speed Automatic Included Included

N33 Manual Tilt Wheel Steering Column Included Included

NP0 Single-Speed Transfer Case Included Included

NZZ Skid Plates Included Included

PAINT Solid Paint STD STD

$47,249.95 $49,180.00

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7438201

Printed On 08/22/2023 11:02:47 AM Page 3 of 7

16

Item IX. 1.



CODE DESCRIPTION INVOICE MSRP

PCV WT Convenience Package Included Included

PEB WT Value Package $627.90 $690.00

PED Chevy Safety Assist Included Included

QDV Tires: 265/70R17 AT BW $182.00 $200.00

QK1 Standard Tailgate Included Included

QT2 Manual Tailgate Function w/No EZ Lift Included Included

R7N Not Equipped w/Steering Column Lock $-45.50 $-50.00

RD6 Wheels: 17" x 8" Ultra Silver Painted Steel Included Included

STDTM Vinyl Seat Trim Included Included

TQ5 IntelliBeam Automatic High Beam On/Off Included Included

UDC 3.5" Monochromatic Display Driver Info Center Included Included

UE4 Following Distance Indicator Included Included

UEU Forward Collision Alert Included Included

UHX Lane Keep Assist w/Lane Departure Warning Included Included

UHY Automatic Emergency Braking Included Included

UKJ Front Pedestrian Braking Included Included

UQF 6-Speaker Audio System Included Included

UVB HD Rear Vision Camera Included Included

V76 Front Frame-Mounted Black Recovery Hooks Included Included

VH6 Black (Semi-Gloss) Front Bumper Included Included

VJG Black (Semi-Gloss) Rear Bumper Included Included

Z82 Trailering Package Included Included

Z85 Standard Suspension Package STD STD

Open-End (Equity) Lease Rate Quote Quote No: 7438201

Printed On 08/22/2023 11:02:47 AM Page 4 of 7

17

Item IX. 1.



CONFIGURED FEATURES:

Body Exterior Features:

      Number Of Doors  4

      Rear Cargo Door Type:  tailgate

      Driver And Passenger Mirror:  power remote heated manual folding side-view door mirrors

      Convex Driver Mirror:  convex driver and passenger mirror

      Skid Plates:  skid plates

      Door Handles:  black

      Front And Rear Bumpers:  black front and rear bumpers with black rub strip

      Rear Step Bumper:  rear step bumper

      Front Tow Hooks:  2 front tow hooks

      Box Style:  regular

      Body Material:  galvanized steel/aluminum body material

      :  class IV trailering with harness, hitch, brake controller

      Grille:  black grille

Convenience Features:

      Air Conditioning  manual air conditioning

      Console Ducts:  console ducts

      Cruise Control:  cruise control with steering wheel controls

      Power Windows:  power windows with front and rear 1-touch down

      Remote Keyless Entry:  keyfob (all doors) remote keyless entry

      Illuminated Entry:  illuminated entry

      Integrated Key Remote:  integrated key/remote

      Auto Locking:  auto-locking doors

      Passive Entry:  proximity key

      Steering Wheel:  steering wheel with manual tilting

      Day-Night Rearview Mirror:  day-night rearview mirror

      Front Cupholder:  front cupholder

      Overhead Console:  mini overhead console with storage

      Glove Box:  locking glove box

      Driver Door Bin:  driver and passenger door bins

      Rear Door Bins:  rear door bins

      Seatback Storage Pockets:  2 seatback storage pockets

      Dashboard Storage:  dashboard storage

      IP Storage:  covered bin instrument-panel storage

      Front Underseat Storage Tray:  locking front underseat storage tray

      Driver Footrest:  driver's footrest

      Retained Accessory Power:  retained accessory power

      Power Accessory Outlet:  1 12V DC power outlet

Entertainment Features:

      radio  AM/FM stereo with seek-scan

      Radio Data System:  radio data system

      Speakers:  6 speakers

      1st Row LCD:  1 1st row LCD monitor

      Wireless Connectivity:  wireless phone connectivity

      Antenna:  fixed antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation Features:

      Headlamp Type  delay-off aero-composite halogen headlamps

      Auto-Dimming Headlights:  IntelliBeam auto high-beam headlights

      Cab Clearance Lights:  cargo bed light

      Front Wipers:  variable intermittent wipers

      Rear Window Defroster:  rear window defroster

      Tinted Windows:  deep-tinted windows

      Dome Light:  dome light with fade

      Front Reading Lights:  front and rear reading lights

      Variable IP Lighting:  variable instrument panel lighting

      Display Type:  analog appearance

Printed On 08/22/2023 11:02:47 AM Page 5 of 7

18

Item IX. 1.



      Tachometer:  tachometer

      Voltometer:  voltmeter

      Exterior Temp:  outside-temperature display

      Low Tire Pressure Warning:  tire specific low-tire-pressure warning

      Trip Computer:  trip computer

      Trip Odometer:  trip odometer

      Lane Departure Warning:  lane departure

      Front Pedestrian Braking:  front pedestrian detection

      Following Distance Indicator:  following distance alert

      Forward Collision Alert:  forward collision

      Oil Pressure Gauge:  oil pressure gauge

      Water Temp Gauge:  water temp. gauge

      Engine Hour Meter:  engine hour meter

      Clock:  in-radio display clock

      Systems Monitor:  driver information centre

      Check Control:  redundant digital speedometer

      Rear Vision Camera:  rear vision camera

      Oil Pressure Warning:  oil-pressure warning

      Water Temp Warning:  water-temp. warning

      Battery Warning:  battery warning

      Low Oil Level Warning:  low-oil-level warning

      Low Coolant Warning:  low-coolant warning

      Lights On Warning:  lights-on warning

      Key in Ignition Warning:  key-in-ignition warning

      Low Fuel Warning:  low-fuel warning

      Low Washer Fluid Warning:  low-washer-fluid warning

      Door Ajar Warning:  door-ajar warning

      Brake Fluid Warning:  brake-fluid warning

      Turn Signal On Warning:  turn-signal-on warning

      Transmission Fluid Temperature Warning:  transmission-fluid-temperature warning

      Brake Pad Wear:  brake pad wear

Safety And Security:

      ABS  four-wheel ABS brakes

      Number of ABS Channels:  4 ABS channels

      Brake Assistance:  brake assist

      Brake Type:  four-wheel disc brakes

      Vented Disc Brakes:  front and rear ventilated disc brakes

      Daytime Running Lights:  daytime running lights

      Spare Tire Type:  full-size spare tire

      Spare Tire Mount:  underbody mounted spare tire w/crankdown

      Driver Front Impact Airbag:  driver and passenger front-impact airbags

      Driver Side Airbag:  seat-mounted driver and passenger side-impact airbags

      Overhead Airbag:  curtain 1st and 2nd row overhead airbag

      Occupancy Sensor:  front passenger airbag occupancy sensor

      Seatbelt Pretensioners:  front seatbelt pre-tensioners

      3Point Rear Centre Seatbelt:  3 point rear centre seatbelt

      Side Impact Bars:  side-impact bars

      Perimeter Under Vehicle Lights:  remote activated perimeter/approach lights

      Tailgate/Rear Door Lock Type:  manual tailgate/rear door lock

      Rear Child Safety Locks:  rear child safety locks

      Ignition Disable:  immobilizer

      Panic Alarm:  panic alarm

      Electronic Stability:  StabiliTrak w/Proactive Roll Avoidance electronic stability stability control with anti-roll

      Traction Control:  ABS and driveline traction control

      Front and Rear Headrests:  manual adjustable front head restraints

      Rear Headrest Control:  2 rear head restraints

Seats And Trim:

      Seating Capacity  max. seating capacity of 6

      Front Bucket Seats:  front split-bench 40-20-40 seats

Printed On 08/22/2023 11:02:47 AM Page 6 of 7

19

Item IX. 1.



      Number of Driver Seat Adjustments:  4-way driver and passenger seat adjustments

      Reclining Driver Seat:  manual reclining driver and passenger seats

      Driver Fore/Aft:  manual driver and passenger fore/aft adjustment

      Front Centre Armrest Storage:  front centre armrest with storage

      Rear Seat Type:  rear 60-40 split-bench seat

      Rear Folding Position:  rear seat fold-up cushion

      Leather Upholstery:  vinyl front and rear seat upholstery

      Door Trim Insert:  vinyl door panel trim

      Headliner Material:  full cloth headliner

      Floor Covering:  full vinyl/rubber floor covering

      Cabback Insulator:  cabback insulator

      Dashboard Console Insert, Door Panel Insert Combination:  metal-look instrument panel insert, door panel insert, console insert

      Shift Knob Trim:  urethane shift knob

      Interior Accents:  chrome interior accents

Standard Engine:

      Engine 310-hp, 2.7-liter I-4 (regular gas)

Standard Transmission:

      Transmission  8-speed automatic w/ OD and auto-manual

Printed On 08/22/2023 11:02:47 AM Page 7 of 7

20

Item IX. 1.



Staff Report 
Subject: Acceptance of Termination of the Probation Services Agreement between 

Effingham County and City of Guyton 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Probation 

Meeting Date: September 5, 2023  

Item Description: Termination of the Probation Services Agreement between 

Effingham County and City of Guyton 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends acceptance of the termination of the 

Probation Services Agreement between Effingham County and City of Guyton 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 City of Guyton has submitted a letter terminating the Probation Agreement in 

place with Effingham County. This will move their probation cases to be 

supervised by Judicial Alternative of Georgia (JAG) effective 9/1/2023.  

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Acceptance of Termination of the Probation Services Agreement between 

Effingham County and City of Guyton 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager 

Funding Source: 

Attachments: Termination Letter 

 

 

 

 

21

Item IX. 2.



22

Item IX. 2.



Staff Report 

 
Subject:    Stormwater Master Plan Y2 Term Amendment #1 

Author:  Jody Jones, Grants Coordinator presented by Mark W. Barnes 

Department:  Finance Department 

Meeting Date: 9/5/23 

Item Description: Consideration to ratify and approve the second term amendment of 
the Stormwater Master Plan Y2 agreement. 

 
Summary Recommendation:   

Staff is requesting ratification and approval of the second term amendment of the 
Stormwater Master Plan Y2 agreement.  The agreement amendment extends the term 
to complete task deliverables from October 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024.    
 

Executive Summary: 

The DNR Coastal Incentive Grant was awarded to support the creation of a Stormwater 
Master Plan.  The agreement extension is needed because all task deliverables have 
not been fully completed by Pond at this time, due to an expansion of original project 
scope. 
 
Background: 
 
1. The awarded funding amount was $80,000. 
2. The cost share was $80,010. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approve the ratification and approval of the Stormwater Master Plan Y2 agreement 
amendment.   

2. Do not ratify and approve the Stormwater Master Plan Y2 agreement amendment.  
3. Provide Staff with Direction. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 

Staff recommends Alternative number 1 – Approve the ratification and approval of the 
Stormwater Master Plan Y2 agreement amendment.   
 

Other Alternatives: 

N/A  

 

Department Review: (list departments) 

Finance 

 

 

23

Item IX. 3.



 

Funding Source: 

 

Attachments: 

Georgia Coastal Incentive Grant Award Agreement Cycle 25 / Amendment #1 

  

 

 

 

24

Item IX. 3.



GEORGIA COASTAL INCENTIVE GRANT AWARD AGREEMENT 
CYCLE  

,” 

AMENDMENT # 

Pursuant to the terms outlined in section (D) TERM and section (Z) CONTRACT 
INTERPRETATION of the “COASTAL INCENTIVE GRANT AWARD 
AGREEMENT CYCLE      ,” between the Georgia Department of Natural Resources, 
COASTAL RESOURCES DIVISION and the  
(“Sub-grantee”) for the Award entitled “
dated                               , the following changes are made part of the Agreement:   

Section A. TERM is hereby amended to extend the end date of the Award Agreement 
from                              to                               . 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment #      as of the 
___ day of ________, 20__. 

Georgia Department of Natural Resources, Coastal Resources Division 

By: __________________________________________ 
Doug Haymans, Director 

_________________________________________ (Sub-grantee) 

By: ___________________________________ 

     Name _______________________________ 
     Title _______________________________ 

Y2 -Storm water Master Plan

Y2 -Storm water Master Plan

Sep 13, 2022

October 1, 2023 March 31, 2024

Effingham County Board of Commissioners

Effingham County Board of Commissioners

1

1
9 August 23

25

25

25

Item IX. 3.



Staff Report            

Subject:  Logistics Parkway ROW Dedication (Fifth District) 
Author:  Chelsie Fernald, Planner II 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Consideration to accept road segments and right-of-way, easements, 
utilities infrastructure, and a lift station system at Old Augusta Commerce Center. 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the plat, and inspected the roads, infrastructure, and lift station identified in 
the warranty deed, and recommend approval.  
 
Executive Summary/Background  

 Old Augusta Commerce Center contractors have installed the roads, infrastructure, and lift 

station to Effingham County standards and design. 

 EOM inspected the right-of-way and all infrastructure and recommended approval. 

 Staff has reviewed the plat. All documents are in order and are consistent with zoning, 

plans, and plats previously approved.  

 EOM reviewed the bond recommendation, and approved the bond for the road segments 

and the lift station.  

 The County Attorney reviewed and approved the warranty deed.  

Alternatives  
1. Approve the dedication of the right-of-way, and accept the roads, infrastructure, and lift 

station identified in the warranty deeds. 

2. Take no action 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services, County Attorney  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1. Plat  2. Warranty Deeds  3. EOM Inspection Approval 

   

 

26

Item X. 1.



Page 1 of 4 

 

      

  
  

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                    

STATE OF GEORGIA        )                                  

COUNTY OF EFFINGHAM   )        

  

WARRANTY DEED  

FOR ROAD, LIFT STATION,  

WATER AND SEWER UTILITIES, AND EASEMENT 
 

THIS INDENTURE made this ___ day of August, 2023, by and between OACC LAND 

VENTURE, LLC, as Party of the First Part, hereinafter referred to as Grantor, and the BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political subdivision of the State 

of Georgia, as Party of the Second Part, hereinafter referred to as Grantee (the words “Grantor” and 

“Grantee” to include their respective, successors and assigns where the context requires or permits). 

   

  WITNESSETH:  

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) in hand paid, at and 

before the sealing and delivery of these presents, and other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor has granted, bargained, sold, conveyed and 

confirmed, and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell, convey and confirm unto the said 

Grantee the following described property:  

 

All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in the 9th G.M. District, Effingham 

County, Georgia, being known as “Lift Station” Old Augusta Road Industrial Park Subdivision, 

Phase 1A, as shown and more particularly described on that certain map or plat made by Joseph A. 

Hale, Jr., R.L.S. No. 2886, dated July 25, 2023 and recorded in Plat Book 630, Page 8 in the records 

of the Clerk of Superior Court of Effingham County, Georgia.  For a more particular description 

reference is hereby made to the aforesaid plat, which is specifically incorporated herein and made a 

part hereof.  The right of way is further described in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A”.   

 

AND  

 

 

27

Item X. 1.



Page 2 of 4 

 

All that certain road, street, and right of way situate, lying and being in the 9th G.M. District of 

Effingham County, Georgia, and being known as Logistics Parkway (10.141 acres, more or 

less), Old Augusta Road Industrial Park Subdivision, Phase 1A, as shown and more 

particularly described on that certain map or plat made by Joseph A. Hale, Jr., R.L.S. No. 2886, 

dated July 25, 2023 and recorded in Plat Book 630, Page 8 in the records of the Clerk of Superior 

Court of Effingham County, Georgia.  For a more particular description reference is hereby made 

to the aforesaid plat, which is specifically incorporated herein and made a part hereof.  The right 

of way is further described in the legal description attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.  It is the 

intention of the Grantor to convey to the Grantee all of its interest in the aforenamed street or right 

of way for public access.  

 

TOGETHER WITH the installed water and sanitary sewer systems and drainage improvements 

located within said rights-of-way and public easements, all located within Old Augusta Road 

Industrial Park Subdivision, Phase 1A, as shown on the aforementioned plat which is incorporated 

herein for descriptive and all other purposes but specifically excluding any sewer laterals, 

detention ponds, sidewalks, common areas, and any portion of the water system from the water 

meter to any commercial building.  

  

TOGETHER WITH a perpetual, non-exclusive, appurtenant, commercial, transmissible general 

utility easement for the installation, construction, maintenance, operation, repair and replacement 

of permanent above ground or underground utilities over, through and across and in those areas 

designated as utility easements, and drainage easements, including the right to ingress and egress 

over the easements, all located within Old Augusta Road Industrial Park Subdivision, Phase 1A, 

as shown on the aforementioned plat which is incorporated herein for descriptive and all other 

purposes.    

  

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said property with all and singular the rights, members, and 

appurtenances thereof, to the same being, belonging, or in anywise appertaining, to the only proper 

use, benefit, and behoof of the said Grantee forever, in fee simple.  

  

AND THE SAID Grantor will warrant and forever defend the right and title to the above 

described property unto the said Grantee against the claims of all persons whomsoever.  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Grantor, by and through its authorized agent, has 

hereunto set its hand and seal, on the day and year first above written.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

28

Item X. 1.



Page 3 of 4 

 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered     GRANTOR: 

in the presence of:   

        OACC LAND VENTURE, LLC,  

         

Unofficial Witness      

       By:       

        J. Mark Shapland, as     

Notary Public     

        

My Commission Expires:   

              

   

 

[NOTARIAL SEAL] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29

Item X. 1.



Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2023.  

  

  

                                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

                                   EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA   

  

            

                         BY:       (Seal) 

           Wesley Corbitt 

               Chairman  

            

            

                                                 ATTEST:     (Seal)   

           Stephanie Johnson  

           Effingham County Clerk  

   

  

Signed, sealed, and delivered  

in the presence of:  

   

________________________________  

Witness  

  

 ________________________________  

Notary Public  

 

 

30

Item X. 1.



C4

C8

L15

L1
6

L1
7

L1
8

1372.72'

2071.17'

1551.51'

S09°51'40"W

S11°40'56"W
N48°08'39"E

S41°51'50"E

568.11'

S79°03'38"E
298.69'

S12°58'47"W

1462.09'

S81°53'29"E
330.09'

S81°46'20"E
392.29'

S12°58'07"W

2825.26'

N77°30'43"W

N77°31'08"W

807.83'

964.16'

N79°33'49"W

670.98'

L1

L8
L9

C3
L12

AKA Goshen Driv
e, La

ke Cheree Road,

Goshen Terra
ce Road, County Road #135

BM #2

BM #1

L2
1

L22

Abercorn Road     C.R. #134

Deed Book 1747, Page 429

Rural Post Roads
Project N

o. EFF011

County Road #133

Deed Book 198, Page 120

295.41'

377.82'

1807.91'

321.77'

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 P

or
tio

n 
of

 P
ar

ce
l "

A
"

199.653 Acre
s

S0
9°

51
'4

5"
W

43
36

.9
3'

1202.52'

1522.74'

100.00'

L14

N79°33'52"W

L1
9

10
.0

0'

S0
9°

51
'4

5"
W

54
4.

04
'

S0
9°

51
'4

5"
W

73
5.

16
'

County Road #446

80' A
cce

ss 
Easement

(P.C. A
272, P

G A)

L2

L3L7

N47°15'46"W

2597.82'

2166.17'

1855.88'

19
19

.3
0'

S77°41'36"E

N77°41'36"W

2853.74'

2848.31'

N49°53'21"E

293.00'

Parcel "B1"
183.731 Acres

L20

100.09'

S47°15'46"E

1244.20'

583.51'

CURVE TABLE

RADIUS

778.51'

756.20'

11534.16'

548.30'

50.00'

1265.00'

1165.00'

448.30'

LENGTH

439.21'

474.58'

224.07'

291.21'

78.54'

157.36'

144.92'

238.10'

DELTA

32°19'27"

35°57'29"

1°06'47"

30°25'51"

90°00'00"

7°07'39"

7°07'39"

30°25'51"

TANGENT

225.62'

245.40'

112.04'

149.13'

50.00'

78.78'

72.55'

121.93'

CHORD

433.41'

466.83'

224.07'

287.80'

70.71'

157.26'

144.83'

235.31'

BEARING

N67°55'39"E

N66°07'12"E

S12°24'43"W

N62°28'41"W

S87°44'14"W

S46°18'04"W

N46°18'04"E

S62°28'41"E

23
07

.5
4'

24
07

.6
3'

 (T
ot

al
)

Parcel "B2"
120.765 Acres

C7
C6

1001.95'

N46°54'14"E

N51°40'47"E

577.91'

N51°40'47"E

N48°08'13"E

1889.17'

2129.68'

N84°06'14"E

580.68'C1

C2

3040.73'
N42°44'14"E

874.56'

S4
2°44'14"W

3190.73'

N47°15'46"W

433.51'

LO
G

IS
TIC

S 
PA

R
K

W
A
Y

10.141 Acre
s

LOGISTICS PARKWAY6.545 Acres

 LINE TABLE

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

LENGTH

37.25'

81.73'

203.52'

19.42'

40.34'

81.42'

256.97'

261.77'

51.01'

0.30'

0.24'

DIRECTION

S29°40'25"W

N77°41'36"W

S49°51'53"W

N47°35'45"W

S49°53'23"W

N47°36'20"W

N49°51'53"E

S01°06'11"E

S09°45'37"W

N84°57'55"E

N58°04'05"W

 LINE TABLE

LINE

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L21

L22

LENGTH

119.27'

24.55'

78.56'

125.99'

86.50'

160.34'

156.29'

81.27'

77.46'

210.89'

329.98'

DIRECTION

S11°51'20"W

S00°41'43"E

S49°23'32"W

S53°26'23"W

S14°07'23"W

S06°43'55"W

S07°23'12"E

S18°09'07"E

S77°41'36"E

N46°51'42"E

S12°58'58"W

CURVE TABLE

CURVE

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

RADIUS

778.51'

756.20'

11534.16'

548.30'

50.00'

1265.00'

1165.00'

448.30'

LENGTH

439.21'

474.58'

224.07'

291.21'

78.54'

157.36'

144.92'

238.10'

DELTA

32°19'27"

35°57'29"

1°06'47"

30°25'51"

90°00'00"

7°07'39"

7°07'39"

30°25'51"

TANGENT

225.62'

245.40'

112.04'

149.13'

50.00'

78.78'

72.55'

121.93'

CHORD

433.41'

466.83'

224.07'

287.80'

70.71'

157.26'

144.83'

235.31'

BEARING

N67°55'39"E

N66°07'12"E

S12°24'43"W

N62°28'41"W

S87°44'14"W

S46°18'04"W

N46°18'04"E

S62°28'41"E

BENCH MARK TABLE (NAVD 88)

BENCH MARK

BM #1

BM #2

DESCRIPTION

1/2" IRON ROD
WITH CAP

"SURVEY CONTROL"

1/2" IRON ROD
WITH CAP

"SURVEY CONTROL"

ELEVATION

57.80'

13.19'

NOTES:
1. Lot Information:

Lot  Number                   Address                                                             Parcel Identification                                           Owner                                                            Deed Book/Page
  Parcel "A"              Logistics Parkway, Rincon, Georgia 31326                   0477B001                    OACC Land Venture, L.L.C.                                                                2696/215
  Parcel "B"              State Route 21, Rincon, Georgia 31326                   04770015B00                G and G Land Holdings, LLC, Kildare Land Company, LLC,           2655/512

                                                                                                                                             P-51 Properties, LLC and Yellow Pine Properties, LLC
2. Bearings as shown are based on the Georgia State Plane Coordinate System, East Zone, NAD83. A Champion Instrument NV3 Receiver using differential corrections

obtained from the EGPS VRS Network was used to position control points used in the survey.
3. According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map Number 13103C0289E, Map Revised: March 16, 2015, this property is

located in Zones X & A; Zone A is a Special Flood Hazard Area. The flood hazard lines as shown on this plat have been taken digitally from
https://www.fema.gov/national-flood-hazard-layer-nfhl.com and have not been verified in the field by Kern & Co., LLC.

4. Building setbacks are to conform to local zoning ordinances.
5. All linear distances shown are horizontal ground distances; unit of measure is the U.S. Survey Foot. Locations are accurate only where dimensioned.
6. This property is to be served by Effingham County Water and Sanitary Sewer systems.
7. In providing this survey no attempt has been made to obtain or show data concerning existence, size, depth, condition, capacity or location of any utility existing on the

site, whether private, municipal or public owned.
8. All survey monuments set are identified with a cap or disk stamped "KERN & CO, PLS  2886".
9. The pond is taken from aerial photography and are not based on a field survey by Kern & Co., LLC.
10. Wetlands that may exist may be under the jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and/or the Georgia Department of Natural Resources. Lot owners and the

developer are subject to penalty by law for disturbance to these protected areas without proper permit application and approval.
11. Subject and adjacent property owners' deed references were provided by Kern & Co., LLC and are not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness.
12. This property is subject to any and all easements, right of way, covenants, or restrictions either recorded or unrecorded.
13. See Savannah Electric and Power Company Easement recorded in Deed Book 311, Page 253.
14. See Drainage Easement granted to Commissioners of Effingham County, Georgia recorded in Deed Book 208, Page 28.
15. See Drainage Easement granted to Commissioners of Effingham County, Georgia recorded in Deed Book 192, Page 320.
16. See Savannah Electric and Power Company Easement recorded in Deed Book 105, Page 441, and Deed Book 132, Page 413.
17. The term “Certification” as used in Rule “180-6-.09(2) and (3)” and relating to professional engineering or land surveying services, as defined in O.C.G.A. 43-15-2(6) and

(11), shall mean a signed statement based upon facts and knowledge known to the registrant and is not a guarantee or warranty, either expressed or implied.
18. This Survey complies with both the rules of the Georgia Board of Registration for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and the Official Code of Georgia Annotated

(OCGA) 15-6-67, in that where a conflict exists between those two sets of specifications, the requirements of law prevail.

0'400' 200' 400'

GRAPHIC SCALE 1" = 400'

800'

.

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

F
ri

, 
2
8
 J

u
l 

2
0
2
3
 -

 7
:5

4
a
m

  
n

w
a
ll

a
c
e

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
A

T
H

: 
G

:\
2
0
2
0
\

2
0
0
0
8
3
.0

0
0
\

d
w

g
\

2
0
0
0
8
3
_

O
ld

 A
u

g
u

st
a
 R

o
a
d

 I
n

d
u

st
ri

a
l 

P
a
rk

-P
h

a
se

 1
A

.d
w

g

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

NO      DATE       REVISION

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

F
ri

, 
2
8
 J

u
l 

2
0
2
3
 -

 7
:5

4
a
m

  
n

w
a
ll

a
c
e

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
A

T
H

: 
G

:\
2
0
2
0
\

2
0
0
0
8
3
.0

0
0
\

d
w

g
\

2
0
0
0
8
3
_

O
ld

 A
u

g
u

st
a
 R

o
a
d

 I
n

d
u

st
ri

a
l 

P
a
rk

-P
h

a
se

 1
A

.d
w

g

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

F
ri

, 
2
8
 J

u
l 

2
0
2
3
 -

 7
:5

4
a
m

  
n

w
a
ll

a
c
e

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
A

T
H

: 
G

:\
2
0
2
0
\

2
0
0
0
8
3
.0

0
0
\

d
w

g
\

2
0
0
0
8
3
_

O
ld

 A
u

g
u

st
a
 R

o
a
d

 I
n

d
u

st
ri

a
l 

P
a
rk

-P
h

a
se

 1
A

.d
w

g

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T

 K
er

n
 &

 C
o

., 
L

L
C

  
©

 2
0
1
3
 T

h
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
an

d
 i
ts

 r
ep

ro
d
u
ct

io
n

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 f
ir

m
 a

n
d
 m

ay
 n

o
t 

b
e 

re
p

ro
d
u
ce

d
, 
p

u
b

lis
h

ed
, 
o

r 
u
se

d
 i
n

 a
n

y 
w

ay
 w

it
h

 o
u
t 

th
e 

w
ri

tt
en

 p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
K

er
n

 &
 C

o
., 

L
L

C
.

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

7
  

 M
al

l 
  

C
o

u
rt

 (
3
1
4
0
6
) 

  
  

  
 P

.O
. 
  

B
o

x 
  

1
5
1
7
9
  

  
  

 S
av

an
n

ah
, 
  

G
eo

rg
ia

  
 3

1
4
1
6

P
h

o
n

e:
 (

9
1
2
) 

3
5
4
-8

4
0
0
  

 F
ax

: 
(9

1
2
) 

3
5
6
-1

8
6
5
  

 E
m

ai
l: 

in
fo

@
k
er

n
en

gi
n

ee
ri

n
g.

co
m

F
ri

, 
2
8
 J

u
l 

2
0
2
3
 -

 7
:5

4
a
m

  
n

w
a
ll

a
c
e

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 P
A

T
H

: 
G

:\
2
0
2
0
\

2
0
0
0
8
3
.0

0
0
\

d
w

g
\

2
0
0
0
8
3
_

O
ld

 A
u

g
u

st
a
 R

o
a
d

 I
n

d
u

st
ri

a
l 

P
a
rk

-P
h

a
se

 1
A

.d
w

g

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET NO:

STAMP:

STAMP:

K
e
rn

 &
 C

o
.,
 L

L
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 E

n
g

in
e
e
rs

  
  

  
 L

a
n

d
 S

u
rv

e
y
o

rs
  

  
  

 L
a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
e
rs

A
rc

h
it

e
c
ts

  
  

L
a
n

d
sc

a
p

e
 A

rc
h

it
e
c
ts

  
  

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

S
c
ie

n
ti

st

THIS BLOCK RESERVED FOR THE CLERK
OF THE SUPERIOR COURT.

1/1

1"= 400'

???

ENW

200083

07/25/2023

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 F
or

: G
eo

rg
ia

 E
xp

or
ts

 C
om

pa
ny

VICINITY MAP
 NOT TO SCALE

M
IN

O
R

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATION

(i)AS REQUIRED BY SUBSECTION (D) OF O.C.G.A.
SECTION 15-6-67, THIS PLAT HAS BEEN PREPARED BY A
LAND SURVEYOR AND APPROVED BY ALL APPLICABLE
LOCAL JURISDICTIONS FOR RECORDING AS EVIDENCED
BY APPROVAL CERTIFICATES, SIGNATURES, STAMPS,
OR STATEMENTS HEREON. SUCH APPROVALS OR
AFFIRMATIONS SHOULD BE CONFIRMED WITH THE
APPROPRIATE GOVERNMENTAL BODIES BY ANY
PURCHASER OR USER OF THIS PLAT AS TO INTENDED
USE OF ANY PARCEL. FURTHERMORE, THE
UNDERSIGNED LAND SURVEYOR CERTIFIES THAT THIS
PLAT COMPLIES WITH THE MINIMUM TECHNICAL
STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY SURVEYS IN GEORGIA AS
SET FORTH IN THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
GEORGIA BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS AND LAND SURVEYORS
AND AS SET FORTH IN O.C.G.A. SECTION 15-6-67.

_____________________________________________
JOSEPH A. HALE, JR.                                            DATE
GEORGIA REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR NO. 2886

KERN & CO., LLC
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION: LSF 761

SURVEY DATE:  08/17/2020
EQUIPMENT USED: LEICA VIVA TS16
CHAMPION INST. NV3 RECEIVER/EGPS NETWORK
ANGULAR ERROR PER "∆" = 01"
ADJUSTED BY COMPASS RULE:
FIELD ERROR OF CLOSURE: 1/31,525
PLAT ERROR OF CLOSURE: 1/2,913,453

DERETSIGEEGISTERED

No. 2886

R G IAOE

G

.AHP
ES

OJ

HAL
,E

.
JRRVEYOR

USDNALLAND SURVEYOR

RR

GR
ID

 N
O

RT
H

GA
 E

AS
T 

ZO
N

E,
 N

AD
 8

3

Adjacent Property Information

Prop. Description Plat N/F Owner(s) Deed Book / Page Parcel ID

A Lot 1, Ridgecrest Subdivision Plat Cabinet C6, Pages B-D Domingo Ruiz and Jackie M. Ruiz 1489/433 0476C001

B 2.50 Acres Divided from the Estate of Joseph Aikens Plat Cabinet D88, Page D2
Mary McDonald, Maggie Bell McDonald, Barbara Ann
McDonald, Gregory Ellis Cope, Stanley Carl McDonald

and Abigail Michelle Dean
2042/23 04770014A00

C 40' Utility Easement, Utility Easement Plat Plat Cabinet C143, Page B Board of Commissioners of Effingham County 1544/377 &  1544/380 04770015A00

D Parcel 3, Survey of Three Parcels from the lands of
Helen Hobbs Dasher

Plat Book 28, Page 594 Laurel Mill, Inc. 2721/862 04650002E00

E Parcel 2, Survey of Three Parcels from the lands of
Helen Hobbs Dasher

Plat Book 28, Page 594 Laurel Mill, Inc. 2545/714 04650002D00

F Parcel 2, Property of Jesse W. Exley Plat Book 14, Page 38 Zoila P. Ortiz 2695/967 04650004

G Parcel 1, Property of Jesse W. Exley Plat Book 14, Page 38 Clifton L. Yawn 201/186 04650005

Detail "A"

Detail "A"

Detail "B"

Detail "B"

Detail
"C"

Detail
"D"

Detail "E"

Detail "C"

Detail "E"

SITE

N77°44'17"W

149.97'

N77°30'43"W      12.60'

0.
46

'
N

09
°0

6'
33

"E

S04°35'57"E
1.93'

Detail
"F"

Detail "F"

N81°53'29"W
1.14'

RE
MA

IN
IN

G 
PO

RT
IO

N 
OF

 P
AR

CE
L "

A"
 A

ND
 P

AR
CE

L "
B"

,
OL

D 
AU

GU
ST

A 
RO

AD
 IN

DU
ST

RI
AL

 P
AR

K
9T

H
 G

.M
. D

IS
TR

IC
T,

 E
FF

IN
G

H
AM

 C
O

U
N

TY
, G

EO
R

G
IA

LEGEND

Detail "G"

Detail
"G"

L1 L1
3

L10 L11

L8

2129.68'

Detail
"H"

Detail "H"

L1
3

Approved for Recording by  Effingham County Zoning Administrator.

________________________________________________________
Zoning Administrator                                                       Date

THE FOLLOWING GOVERNMENTAL BODIES HAVE
APPROVED THIS PLAT FOR FILING

O
L

D
 A

U
G

U
S

T
A

 R
O

A
D

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 P

A
R

K
, 

P
H

A
S

E
 1

A

REFERENCES:
1. Surveyor's Record E, Page 326
2. Plat Book F, Page 642
3. Plat Book 4, Page 76
4. Plat Book 4, Page 93
5. Plat Book 4, Page 129
6. Plat Book 4, Page 193
7. Plat Book 5, Page 144
8. Plat Book 5, Page 148
9. Plat Book 10, Page 166
10. Plat Book 11, Page 125
11. Plat Book 13, Pages 266-267
12. Plat Book 13, Pages 270-271
13. Plat Book 14, Page 33
14. Plat Book 14, Page 38
15. Plat Book 24, Page 99
16. Plat Cabinet A199, Page E
17. Plat Cabinet A215, Page E
18. Plat Cabinet A263, Page A
19. Plat Cabinet A272, Page A
20. Plat Cabinet A321, Page A
21. Plat Cabinet A350, Page D
22. Plat Cabinet A394, Page F
23. Plat Cabinet B68, Page D
24. Plat Cabinet B82, Page F1
25. Plat Cabinet B82, Page F2
26. Plat Cabinet B102, Page E
27. Plat Cabinet B168, Page B
28. Plat Cabinet C6, Pages B-D
29. Plat Cabinet C58, Page F1
30. Plat Cabinet C69, Pages D1, E1, F1
31. Plat Cabinet C70, Page A1
32. Plat Cabinet C143, Page B
33. Plat Cabinet C179, Page D2
34. Deed Book 2559, Page 275
35. Plat Cabinet D51, Page C2
36. Plat Cabinet D63, Page C1
37. Plat Cabinet D88, Page D2
38. Plat Cabinet D120, Page D1
39. Plat Book 28, Page 156
40. Plat Book 28, Page 594
41. Plat Book 28, Page 625
42. Plat Book 28, Page 766
43. Plat Book 28, Page 899
44. Plat Book 29, Page 14
45. Plat Book 29, Page 157
46. Plat Book 29, Page 211
47. Plat Book 29, Page 411
48. Georgia Power Company Map File No. S45, Sheet 7

of 16, 230 KV Transmission Line Effingham Station to
Port Wentworth Station, Drawing number:
12047.01-PP-7.

49. Georgia Power Company Map File No. S38-1 Sheet 7
of 10, Effingham Station to Goshen Substation
115KV, Asbuilt Date 1/13/83, S.D.W.D. TL-965.

50. Department of Transportation State of Georgia,
Right of Way Proposed, Old Augusta Road,
Effingham County, Federal Aid Project
RS-0953(9)R/W.

51. Old Augusta Road, County Road 133, Prepared by
John O. Parker, Survey date 3-26-06 with revisions.

PRELIMINARY

N48°08'13"E     
     

   2
129.68'

1807.91'

321.77'

54
4.

04
'

S0
9°

51
'4

5"
W

Detail "D"

S0
9°

08
'1

8"
W

5.
40

'
(T

IE
)

L8
L9

321.77'

Detail "I"

Detail "I"

377.82' 295.41'

19
29

.3
0'

19
19

.3
0'

10
.0

0'

L4
L5

L3
L6

L7
222.77'

Detail "J"

Detail "J"

I hereby certify that this plat is true, correct, and accurate
survey as required by Effingham County Subdivision
Regulations; and was prepared from an actual survey of
the property made under my supervision, and that
monuments shown have been located and placed to the
specifications set forth in said regulations.

Concrete Monuments set have a minimum dimension of 3
inches by 3 inches and 24 inches long. Iron Rods set are
one-half inches in diameter and 24 inches long.

_________________________________________________
JOSEPH A. HALE, JR.                  DATE
GEORGIA REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR NO. 2886

50.00'

1855.88'

40.65'

N47°15'46"W

N48°08'13"E

POINT OF
BEGINNING

N49°53'32"E  293.00'

C6

L21

Detail
"K"

Detail
"L"

Detail "K"

Detail "L"

C5

S4
2°44'14"W

433.51'

31

Item X. 1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tract 4B Minor Subdivision of the  Remaining Portion of Tract 4 Plat Book 29, Page 157 N/F Emily Badham Wood Deed Book 2280, Page 36 Parcel ID: 04770001C00

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zone A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zone X

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approximate Location of Floodplain Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text
Approximate Location of Floodplain Boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.75 Acres Divided from Property of Chimney Road Associates, LLC Plat Cabinet B82, Page F1 N/F Coastal Water & Sewerage Co., LLC Deed Book 625, Page 144 Parcel ID: 04760002

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.60 Acres Divided from Property of Hansjoachim Neckenig Plat Cabinet A215, Page E N/F Coastal Water Company, Inc. and Coastal Sewerage Company, Inc. Deed Book 331, Page 113 Parcel ID: 04760001

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tract 5 A Subdivision Plat of  Old Augusta Road Development Plat Cabinet C58, Page F1 N/F Pearl Intermodal LLC Deed Book 2707, Page 530 Parcel ID: 04760004E00

AutoCAD SHX Text
The Aikens Estate Plat Cabinet D63, Page C1 N/F Hezekiah Aikens, Jr; Margaret Aikens and Monique Aikens; Willie B. Aikens; and Johnnie Mae Aikens Deed Book 2042, Page 11 Plat Book F, Page 642 Parcel ID: 04770014

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
80.71 Acre Portion of Tract Two  of the G.C. Exley, Estate Plat Cabinet C69, Pages D1, E1, F1 Plat Cabinet C70, Page A1 N/F Yevoc LLC Deed Book 1225, Page 298 Parcel ID: 0466C001D01

AutoCAD SHX Text
67.60 Acres of the Future Development of Effingham Park of Commerce  Remaining area of Tract Two Plat Book 29, Page 211 N/F WE International Trading, LLC Deed Book 2428, Page 625 Parcel ID: 0466C001D00

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lot 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F SAV Commerce Properties, LLC Deed Book 2772, Page 25 Parcel ID: 04650001

AutoCAD SHX Text
 41.80 Acres Divided from Property of Jesse W. Exley Plat Cabinet A263, Page A N/F P-51 Properties, LLC and Yellow Pine Properties, LLC Deed Book 2742, Page 863 Parcel ID: 04650002

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R  O  A  D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Twenty One Centre Commercial Park Plat Cabinet A350, Page D

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF (Leaning)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF (Leaning)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF (Leaning)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"  IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3"CMF (Disturbed)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF "UBCPC"

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Utility Easement  Easement Easement (DB 331, PG 117) (PC A215, PG E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Per PC C6, PP B-D 20' Sanitary Sewer  Easement to connect to existing 4" force main

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Utility Easement  Easement Easement (Plat Cabinet C6, Pages B-D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' Utility Easement  Easement Easement (Plat Book 28, Page 594)

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' Utility Easement  Easement Easement Utility Easement Plat (Plat Cabinet C143, Page B)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tower  No. 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOSHEN ROAD EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
54.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wire Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wire Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wire Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wire Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
145'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Sewer Easement  Easement Easement (Plat Cabinet C6, Pages B-D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8  0 '   R  /  W    0 '   R  /  W  

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC N 820,526.88 E 957,778.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Utility Easement  Easement Easement PC B102, PG E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOSHEN COMMERCIAL  PARK DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"  IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3"CMF N 823,379.54 E 950,776.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
O  L  D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R  O  A  D

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5 0 '   R / W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C   H   I   M   N   E    

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' Easement  Dominon Energy SCG Pipeline Project Project: SCG-7383 Natural Gas Transmission Easement (Deed Book 1620, Page 456) (Plat Cabinet C179, Page D2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Georgia Power 245' Savannah Electric & Power Company Easement Deed Book 161, Page 399       Plat Book 5, Page 144

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' Utility Easement  Easement Easement (Deed Book 602, Page 227)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tower  No. 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tower  No. 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tower  No. 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tower  No. 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southern Telecom, Inc. Easement (Deed Book 2450, Pages 75 & 78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3605"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3604"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "4349"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3630"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "4351"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "4352"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3633"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3632"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "4353"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3635"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3634"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3597"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.06 miles from the Eastern R.O.W. of  State Route 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "3622"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "4348"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Centerline of  asphalt pavement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Centerline of  asphalt pavement

AutoCAD SHX Text
Access Road Plat Book 4, Page 76  Plat Book 13, Pages 266 & 270 Plat Cabinet A263, Page A

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Northbound 100' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAP: EDFR-041-2(36) P.I. #520970

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Southbound 100' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE ROUTE 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOSHEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOSHEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3" CMF(B)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zone X

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zone A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zone X

AutoCAD SHX Text
Zone  X

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Lot A-2 Old Augusta Road Industrial Park Plat Book 29, Page 411 N/F Old Augusta Vertical II, LLC                                                               Old Augusta Vertical II, LLC                                                               Deed Book 2816, Page 149 Parcel ID: 0477B003

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Lot A-1 Old Augusta Road Industrial Park Plat Book 29, Page 411 N/F Old Augusta Vertical I, LLC                                                                Old Augusta Vertical I, LLC                                                                Deed Book 2816, Page 146 Parcel ID: 0477B004

AutoCAD SHX Text
 Lot A-3 Old Augusta Road Industrial Park Plat Book 29, Page 411 N/F Old Augusta Vertical III, LLC                                                               Old Augusta Vertical III, LLC                                                               Deed Book 2810, Page 138 Parcel ID: 0477B005

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Fire Easement Deed Book 2809, Page 242

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ring Road (50' Access & Utility Easement) Deed Book 2809, Page 242

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Fire Easement Deed Book 2809, Page 242

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
State Route 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chimney   Rd

AutoCAD SHX Text
Old Augusta Rd

AutoCAD SHX Text
McCall Rd

AutoCAD SHX Text
Effingham County

AutoCAD SHX Text
Goshen Rd

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chatham County

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" IPFC "T&H LSF 145"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" IRFC "PROP COR"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"  IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3"  CMF (Broken)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
RRIF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5"  IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5"X3.5"  CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"  IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Rod Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Rod Found with Cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IPFC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Pipe Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
Iron Pipe Found with Cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
NLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIF

AutoCAD SHX Text
Nail Found 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Angle Iron Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
RRIF

AutoCAD SHX Text
Railroad Iron Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tower  No. 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 827,175.65 E 956,341.55 3"X3" CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
Abercorn Rd

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"IRF N 827,426.57 E 956,435.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' Utility Easement  Easement Easement (DB 331, PG 117) (PC A215, PG E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Easement  Dominon Energy SCG Pipeline Project Project: SCG-7383 Natural Gas Transmission Easement (DB 1620, PG 456), (PC C179, PG D2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"  IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"  IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"  IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' Easement  Dominon Energy SCG Pipeline Project Project: SCG-7383 Natural Gas Transmission Easement (DB 1620, PG 456), (PC C179, PG D2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG  "4347"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG "4346" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
45" Oak  Tree

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
UBCPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Concrete Monument Found

AutoCAD SHX Text
Union Bag Camp Paper Corp CMF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text
Deed Book

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plat Book

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plat Cabinet

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Pages

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
Now or Formerly

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
Utility Pole

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCG Pipeline R/W Boundary Monument Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
Square Feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
Computed Position (No Monument)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC N 820,909.18 E 952,307.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOSHEN  ROAD EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
(B)

AutoCAD SHX Text
Broken

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"X24" Iron Rod Found with Cap Marked "LS 2886"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"X24" Iron Rod Set with Cap Marked "LS 2886"

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lift Station Old Augusta Road Industrial Park Plat Book 29, Page 411 N/F OACC Land Venture, L.L.C.                                                                OACC Land Venture, L.L.C.                                                                Deed Book 2693, Page 215 Parcel ID: 0477B001B00 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MNFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
Parking Area west of line 12.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Tank  Building west  of line 12.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Tank 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text
One Story Masonry Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Variable Width  Fire Easement Deed Book 2809, Page 242

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' Utility Easement

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRFKC



32

Item X. 1.



Staff Report            
 
Subject:  Rezoning (Fourth District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Consideration to approve an Assemblage Permit for Melissa Reagan of 
Madrac Farms to hold a pumpkin patch, corn maze, hayrides, corn pit slide, playground, and 
vendors event on five weekends, from September 30, 2023 through October 29, 2023, from 10am 
- 6pm, at 580 Ralph Rahn Road. [Map 411 Parcels# 19B, 24] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of an Assemblage Permit for 
Melissa Reagan of Madrac Farms to hold their annual pumpkin patch, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  

 The Madrac Farms pumpkin patch is an annual event held at 580 Ralph Rahn Road, 

Rincon, and wishes to continue the activity this year beginning October 2, 2021 through 

October 31, 2021, from 10 am to 6pm, on weekends only. 

 There will be four traffic attendants stationed at the entrance road and in the parking 

area. Sheriff’s Department deputies will also be on-site to direct traffic.  

 There will be port-a-potties onsite for restrooms, pursuant to Health Department 

requirements. Vendors will be inspected before they can sell food. 

 The applicant has applied for a food service permit. 

 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to an Assemblage Permit for a pumpkin patch event at 580 Ralph Rahn 
Road, with the following condition: 

1.     All parking shall be contained to Madrac Farms property, and as exhibited on the 
submitted site plan. 

2. Deny the request for an Assemblage Permit for a pumpkin patch event at 580 Ralph Rahn 
Road. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1.   Assemblage Application 3. DPH application    

2. Easement Deed  4. Site Map 
 

 

33

Item X. 2.



34

Item X. 2.



35

Item X. 2.



36

Item X. 2.



37

Item X. 2.



38

Item X. 2.



39

Item X. 2.



40

Item X. 2.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of PO 23-REQ-039 for the purchase of a Sewer Bypass Pump 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Water/Sewer 

Meeting Date: September 4, 2023 

Item Description: PO 23-REQ-039 for the purchase of a Sewer Bypass Pump 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of PO 23-REQ-039 for the 

purchase of a Sewer Bypass Pump from Synergy Equipment for $99,527.00 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 Staff posted a Request for Quotes for the purchase of a trailer mounted sewer 

bypass pump for the Water/Sewer Department. 

 Four quotes were received: 

o MWI Pumps: $94,678.00 

o Synergy Equipment: $99,527.00 

o Holland Pump Company: $108,450.00 

o Technology International, Inc.: $143,200.00 

 The pump spec provided by MWI shows a max TDH of 140 ft. During the 

question/answer portion of the bid process, the County stated that 170 ft was 

required. The pump spec for Synergy meets that requirement with a TDH of 175 

ft. After a thorough review by EOM staff, they recommend award to Synergy 

Equipment. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of PO 23-REQ-039 for the purchase of a Sewer Bypass Pump from 

Synergy Equipment for $99,527.00 

2. Approval of PO 23-REQ-039 for MWI Pumps in the amount of $94,678.00 

3. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2, 3 

Department Review: EOM, Purchasing 

Funding Source: SPLOST 

Attachments: 

1. Synergy Equipment PO 

2. MWI Pumps PO 

 

 

 

41

Item X. 3.



 

42

Item X. 3.



804 S LAUREL STREET DATE:

SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329 P.O. #

Phone: 912-754-2159

Fax: 912-754-8413

VENDOR SHIP TO

Synergy Equipment Effingham County Board of Commissioners

10117 Princess Palm Ave 804 S.Laurel Street

Suite 500 Springfield, GA 31329

Tampa, FL 33610-8300 ATTN : Alison Bruton

ATTN : Robert Veazey 912-754-2159

(813)848-8484 / rveazey@synergyequip.com

ITEM # QTY

1

OTHER COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

ECBOC is a tax exempt entity.  Tax ID# is 58-6000821

  

SYNERGY EQUIPMENT - SIGNATURE TITLE

  

SYNERGY EQUIPMENT - PRINT NAME DATE

 

  

AUTHORIZED BY - SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED BY - TITLE

 

AUTHORIZED BY - PRINT NAME AUTHORIZED DATE

Sewer Bypass Pump

*Price includes all hoses & accessories

*Warranty: 2 years/2000 hours

*Lead Time: 50 Days ARO

9/5/2023

23-REQ-039

DESCRIPTION

ECBOC  

TOTAL

$99,527.00

PURCHASE ORDER
Effingham County Board of Commissioners

REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. SHIPPING TERMS

UNIT PRICE

99,527.00$      

*Specs provided as separate attachment

 

TAX RATE

99,527.00$      

-$                 

SUBTOTAL

 

 

WESLEY CORBITT

-$                 

-$                 

-$                 

Synergy Equipment agrees to furnish one (1) Sewer Bypass Pump as described in 23-REQ-039.  The County references the terms, 

conditions and specifications contained in 23-REQ-039.

CHAIRMAN

99,527.00$      

TAX

S & H

OTHER

TOTAL

43

Item X. 3.



Date: 7/31/2023

Prepared for:
Phone:
Email:

MANUFACTURER QTY LIST NET EXTENDED 

Synergy 1 $99,527.00 $99,527.00

Prepared By: $99,527.00
Phone: Included
Email: N/A

$99,527.00

*Note: Quote good for 30 days

*Warranty: 2 Years/2000 Hours

*Specifications provided as separate 
attachment

Synergy Equipment                                                                                   

*Lead Time: 50 Days ARO

804 S Laurel St

8 Inch Centrifugal Trash Pump, Trailer 
Mounted, Sound Attenuated

*Price includes all hoses & accessories 
per bid specifications.

DESCRIPTION

Effingham County Finance Dept.

Bid # 23-REQ-039

813-733-1642
rveazey@synergyequip.com

Sub-Total
Freight

Tax
Total

2206 US Hwy 80

Garden City, Ga 31408

Springfield, GA 31329

Effingham County
BILL TO:                                                                                                                  SHIP TO:

Robert Veazey

Attachment A - PO 23-REQ-039

44

Item X. 3.



Pump Division  Locations
Ft Myers FL    Jacksonville, FL    Kissimmee, FL    Tampa, FL    Sarasota, FL    Stuart, FL   Savannah, GA   

 Holly, MI

PUMP CENTRIFUGAL-TRASH 8" 
 

877-388-7951

The Synergy 8" automatic priming centrifugal trash pump elevates the standard for temporary
high volume pumping, with over 160 years of heavy duty pump manufacturing experience behind
it. This pump can perform the work of three, excelling in sewer by-pass, limited well-
point/horizontal sock dewatering, and general dewatering.   It is the most reliable, ease of
maintenance pump ever offered to the portable pump market.

Offered with the following priming system options; Diaphragm Pump with 60 cfm air
displacement, Venturi/Ejector style with 20 cfm air displacement and Vacuum Pump with 60 cfm
air displacement.  This allows the pump to prime and re-prime automatically and operate with
the suction intake intermittently exposed to atmosphere.  Capable of running dry for indefinite
periods of time without harm to the pump. With capacity to handle solids up to 3”, maximum
flows of 3000 gpm, and up to 175 ft total dynamic head.  

Attachment A - PO 23-REQ-039

45

Item X. 3.



Pump Division  Locations
Ft Myers FL    Jacksonville, FL    Kissimmee, FL    Tampa, FL    Sarasota, FL    Stuart, FL   Savannah, GA   

 Holly, MI

PUMP CENTRIFUGAL-TRASH 8"

877-388-7951

Most flexible pumpset in the industry– handles
raw sewage, slurries, well-point dewatering, and
liquids with solids up to 3” diameter.
Dry running vacuum pressure seal allows for
continuous dry running periods and easy,
inexpensive field replacement. 
Unique priming system, with back flush system to
allow clearing of suction pipe with the push of a
lever.
Skid mounted
Heavy duty fuel tank, allows more than 24 hours
of operation between refueling.

Various controller options with GPS and system
monitoring capabilities
Sound attenuated enclosures design for ease of
maintenance
Highway Trailer system converted from skid in
minutes

Features

Options

Attachment A - PO 23-REQ-039

46

Item X. 3.



804 S LAUREL STREET DATE:

SPRINGFIELD, GA 31329 P.O. #

Phone: 912-754-2159

Fax: 912-754-8413

VENDOR SHIP TO

MWI Pumps Effingham County Board of Commissioners

33 NW 2ns Street 804 S.Laurel Street

Deerfield Beach, FL 33441 Springfield, GA 31329

ATTN : Alison Bruton

ATTN : Kelby Morgan 912-754-2159

(772)321-3425 / kelbym@mwipumps.com

ITEM # QTY

1

OTHER COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

ECBOC is a tax exempt entity.  Tax ID# is 58-6000821

  

MWI PUMPS - SIGNATURE TITLE

  

MWI PUMPS - PRINT NAME DATE

 

  

AUTHORIZED BY - SIGNATURE AUTHORIZED BY - TITLE

 

AUTHORIZED BY - PRINT NAME AUTHORIZED DATE

 

 

WESLEY CORBITT

-$                 

-$                 

-$                 

MWI Pumps agrees to furnish one (1) Sewer Bypass Pump as described in 23-REQ-039.  The County references the terms, 

conditions and specifications contained in 23-REQ-039.

CHAIRMAN

94,678.00$      

TAX

S & H

OTHER

TOTAL

TAX RATE

94,678.00$      

-$                 

SUBTOTAL

*Specs provided as separate attachment

 

UNIT PRICE

94,678.00$      

PURCHASE ORDER
Effingham County Board of Commissioners

REQUISITIONER SHIP VIA F.O.B. SHIPPING TERMS

Sewer Bypass Pump

*Price includes hoses & accessories

*Warranty: 1 year

*Lead Time: 12-14 weeks after receipt of PO/NTP

9/5/2023

23-REQ-039

DESCRIPTION

ECBOC  

TOTAL

$94,678.00

47

Item X. 3.



 

 

 

August 3, 2023 

 

To: Effingham County 

 

Re: Sewer Bypass Pump 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit for proposal our MWI CT008 diesel powered engine, sound 

attenuated, trailer mounted self-priming sewer bypass pump. MWI is an American manufacturer of 

construction, industrial, mining, and custom engineered pumps. Family owned and Florida based, in 

business since 1926. The following equipment is included in our bid proposal: 

 

• One (1) MWI Primerite model CT008 automatic dry self-priming sewer bypass pump with Deutz 
TCD 3.6 Tier 4 Diesel engine rated 123hp @ 1800rpm. Enclosed by a sound attenuating 
enclosure, wholly mounted on a DOT approved trailer with electric brakes and wiring harness. 

• One (1) set float assembly, start/stop, 50’ N/O floats 

• Six (6)- 8” x 10’ composite hoses with quick connects 

• One (1)- 8” Bauer strainer 

• One (1)- 90 Degree elbow 
 
Total Price: $94,678 plus applicable sales tax  
 

Our bid also includes: 

• MWI's one (1) year warranty  

• Freight to Effingham County, GA. 
 

Specifically not included: 

• Unloading or installation 
 

If bid is accepted, freight prepaid to job site within Effingham county Georgia, with contractor to unload. 

Terms are Net 30 days after delivery. Delivery will be approximately 12-14 weeks after receipt of 

purchase order/notice to proceed. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to quote our equipment and look forward to your favorable 

consideration. 

 

Yours Truly, 

MWI CORPORATION 

Kelby Morgan 

kelbym@mwipumps.com 

 

Attachment A - PO 23-REQ-039

48

Item X. 3.

kelbym@mwipumps.com


PRIMERITE™ CT008
8” X 8” AUTOMATIC DRY 
SELF-PRIMING TRASH PUMP

APPLICATIONS

Construction 
Dewatering 

Sewage Bypass

Flood Drainage 

Mining/Quarries

Municipal 

General Industrial

The Primerite™ is the perfect pump for contractors, pump rental companies, mining operators 
and general industrial or municipal use. The pump’s oil-filled bearing box and a mechanical 
seal in an oil bath enable it to run dry all day long for up to 24 hours, making it the right choice 
for handling inconsistent flows found in sewage bypass pumping and job site dewatering. This 
pump is completely self contained in either skid or trailer configurations with integral lifting bail, 
tie downs and fuel tank.

FEATURES

QUICK SPECIFICATIONS

Suction connection 8” 150# ANSI B16.5

Delivery connection 8” 150# ANSI B16.5

Max capacity 3750 GPM

Max solids handling 3.125"

Max impeller diameter 12.2"

Max head (TDH) 140‘

Max operating speed 1900 rpm

Max suction lift 24‘

Dimensions 65 x 96 x 148“

Sound levels w/ enclosure 67 dBA at 7M / 23‘

Max fuel consumption At 75 HP; up to 24 hr run time

▪ Primes and reprimes
automatically

▪ Solids handling up to 3.125”

▪ Engine driven compressor

▪ Vacuum and discharge
pressure gauge

▪ Lockable fuel cap

▪ Forklift slots (skid models)

▪ Torsion bar axle

▪ Integral 94 fuel tank
with gauge

▪ Skid or optional
trailer-mounted

▪ DOT light kit available

▪ Hydraulic surge brakes
standard, electric brakes
available

▪ Front and rear
stabilizing jacks

▪ 3” Lunette ring for pintle hitch
– Other options available

▪ Lifting bail

▪ Volute drain

▪ Heavy-duty truck tie downs

▪ Engines – Caterpillar,
Perkins, John Deere
and Deutz available

▪ Flexible flywheel coupling

▪ 8” ANSI Pattern flanges –
Suction and discharge

▪ Optional float activated,
auto start/stop controls

▪ Manufactured in the USA

PR
IM

ER
ITE™

 C
T008

Attachment A - PO 23-REQ-039

49

Item X. 3.



MATERIALS & SPECIFICATIONS

Standard engine
Deutz TCD 3.6 Tier 4 Final 
Diesel

Max HP 99 HP

Fuel capacity 94 Gal

Drive type
Flywheel direct drive 
flexible element

Impeller
CA-40 Corrosion resistant 
iron/chromium alloy

Volute
Ductile cast iron ASTM A536 grade 
70-50-05

Pump shaft 1045 Steel; Stainless steel option

Compressor
Engine-driven, oil lubricated 
and water cooled

Priming assembly 304 Stainless steel venturi

Control panel

Tach and hour meter, including 
shutdowns for low oil pressure, high 
coolant temperature, Plug-N-Play 
and float-ready

Discharge  
non-return valve

Val-matic swing flex check valve 
ASTM A536 grade 65-45-12

Mechanical seal
Stainless steel with silicon carbide 
faces; Buna elastomers

Weight of trailer 
mounted unit

3900 lbs (dry)

MWI Pumps Headquarters
33 NW 2nd St | Deerfield Beach, FL 33441
Copyright © 2019 MWI Pumps | All rights reserved. Subject to change without notice.
Inquiries: 954-426-1500 | Fax: 954-426-8938 | Email: info@mwipumps.com | mwipumps.com

0

1

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700
Water Flow

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

0 1

To
ta

l D
yn

am
ic

 H
ea

d

0
1

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 220L/S

US GPM

M3/Hr

-30

-20

-10

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

130

140

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500

95 Hp

75 Hp

35 Hp

50 Hp

B.E.P.

1900 rpm

1800 rpm

1600 rpm

1400 rpm

NOTE:  POWER CURVES INCLUDE 
PUMP SELF PRIMING DEVICE POWER 

= RECOMMENDED
OPERATING RANGE

US GPM

M
ET

ER
S

FE
ET

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 0

5

10

15

20

25

30
N

PS
H

R
 (f

t)

30

20

10

25

15

5

0

SU
C

T
IO

N
 H

E
A

D
 (f

t)

To find maximum possible flow at a given speed and suction head, draw a vertical line from 
the appropriate suction head/speed intersection up to the appropriate capacity speed curve 

2000 rpm

1400 rpm

Moving Water Industries
Model: CT008

8-19

65”148”

96”

PERFORMANCE CURVE

DIMENSIONS

PR
IM

ER
ITE™

 C
T008

TO
TA

L 
D

YN
A

M
IC

 H
EA

D

WATER FLOW

Attachment A - PO 23-REQ-039

50

Item X. 3.

http://mwipumps.com


Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order #5 for Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company for the 

Stormwater Master Plan 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Public Works 

Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 

Item Description: Change Order #5 for Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company for the 

Stormwater Master Plan 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Change Order #5 for Task Order 

22-006 with Pond & Company for the Stormwater Master Plan for a total contract addition of 

$35,000 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 In 2021, the County received a Coastal Incentive Grant for the Stormwater Master Plan.   

 The scope of the grant and the contract awarded to Pond and Company to prepare the 

Masterplan in May 2022. This original agreement was based on modeling the 8 southern 

HUC 12 watersheds and a previous change order was approved to add the northern 7 

HUC 12 watersheds that were not included in the original scope.  

 Change Order 4 was originally requested because Pond had identified 126 additional 

structures that were not associated with road crossing that intersected the public 

hydroline data. Due to other scoping issues, and because this additional information is 

not required per the grant, Pond is proposing a deduct of the $40,000 allotted for CO4.  

 Pond is requesting an additional $75,000 be added to the contract total to complete the 

Masterplan development for the northern HUC12 watersheds which also includes an 

analysis of the model results, preparation of figures, capital improvement evaluation, 

cost estimating, and infrastructure condition assessments. With the $40,000 deduction, 

this will result in a contract increase of $35,000.  

 Pond previously invoiced $12,000 against Change Order No. 4 for the preparation of the 

GIS database development that was required for the additional field data collection 

effort. This amount ($12,000) will be credited to the County on the next monthly invoice. 

 This request has been approved by Effingham County staff and Thomas and Hutton. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider: 

1. Approval of Change Order #5 for Task Order 22-006 with Pond & Company for the 

Stormwater Master Plan in the amount of $35,000 bringing the total contract price to 

$350,554.48. 

2. Take no action 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2 

Department Review: County Manager, Project Manager, Finance, Purchasing, T&H 

Funding Source: Fund #560-4910-560-54-3000 

Attachments: Change Order 5 Request from Pond & Company  

51

Item X. 4.



All Pond marketing materials are printed on papers containing post-consumer recycled fibers and are FSC Certified. 

 

August 15, 2023 

 

Mr. Tim Callanan, County Manager 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners 

601 N. Laurel Street 

Springfield, Georgia 31329 

 

RE:       Effingham County Stormwater Master Plan  

Task Order No. 22-005 – Change Order No. 5: Master Plan Development 

Additional Data Collection (CO#4) Deduct 

Pond # 1220373 

 

Dear Mr. Callanan:  

 

Pond respectfully requests your consideration and approval of Change Order No. 5 as it relates to the Stormwater Master 

Plan | Task Order No. 22-005.  Additional effort was required to develop the Master Plan document for the eight northern 

HUC12 watersheds in the County. This includes analysis of model results, preparation of figures, capital improvement 

evaluation and cost estimating, and infrastructure condition assessments. Pond is requesting an additional $75,000 to 

complete the Master Plan development for the eight northern HUC12 watersheds. Our proposed Change Order No. 5 

includes the removal of Change Order No. 4 for additional optional data collection, a deduct of $40,000 from the contract 

price. The breakdown is as follows: 

 

Project:    Stormwater Master Plan | Task Order No. 22-005  

Contract Date:    May 19, 2022       

Change Order Effective Date:  _______________      

Change Order Issued to:  Pond & Company      

    49 Park of Commerce Way, Suite 203    

    Savannah, Georgia 31405     

     

ITEM 

NO. 

DESCRIPTION UNITS BID QTY UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

1 Change Order No. 4 - Additional Data Collection 

and Conditions Assessment (Deduct) 

   ($40,000.00) 

2 Master Plan Development - 8 Northern HUC12 

Watershed 

Hours 500 $150 $75,000.00 

 TOTAL    $35,000.00 

 

  

52

Item X. 4.



 

 

 

Page 2 

 

The original Contract Sum was ............................................................................................................... $220,600.00 

Net change by previously authorized Change Orders Nos. 1 - 4 .............................................................. $94,954.48 

The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order No. 5 was ....................................................................... $315,554.48 

The Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order No. 5 ............................................................. $35,000.00 

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order No. 5 will be ........................................................ $350,554.48 

The Contract Time will be increased by _0_ days 

The Time allowed for completion is therefore __N/A  _ 

Pond previously invoiced $12,000 against Change Order No. 4 for the preparation of the GIS database development 

that was required for the additional field data collection effort. This amount ($12,000) will be credited to the County 

on the next monthly invoice. 

The remaining deliverables to be completed under Task Order No. 22-005 are as follows: Cash Flow Forecast, Master 

Plan Presentation, and the delivery of Final Deliverables to the County. The current schedule for completion of the 

Cash Flow analysis task will be 8-31-2021.  Additionally, the presentation of the DRAFT Stormwater Master Plan to 

the County is currently scheduled to occur prior to 9-18-2023. Pond will provide a DRAFT of the presentation to the 

County for review and comment by 8-31-2023 and will work with the County to schedule the presentation prior to 9-

18-2023 or at a time that is convenient for the County.  The Final deliverables task, which includes the development 

of the FINAL Stormwater Master Plan and delivery of the Project Database (SWMM Model and GIS Geodatabase) 

will be completed within 2-weeks following the Stormwater Master Plan presentation and receipt of comments from 

the County. 

We thank you for your consideration of this Change Order and look forward to the opportunity to continue to partner with 

Effingham County on this and future projects. 

 

Pond & Company 

 

 

 

Chris Fagerstrom, PE     Melissa Phillips 

Associate Principal | Director of Water Resources  Business Development Manager 

Project Manager       Client Liaison 

 

 

Please indicate your ACCEPTANCE below to approve the authorized changes to this Contract. 

  

53

Item X. 4.



 

 

 

Page 3 

 

 

Owner 

Effingham County Board of Commissioners   

601 N. Laurel Street  

Springfield, Georgia 31329      

 

Name:  Wesley Corbitt, Chairman    

 

Signature:        

 

Date:         

 

Attested by: 

 

Name: Stephanie Johnson, County Clerk   

 

Signature:        

 

Date:         

 

 

Consultant 

Pond & Company 

49 Park of Commerce Way, Suite 203 

Savannah, Georgia 31405 

 

Name:         

 

Signature:        

 

Date:         

 

54

Item X. 4.



Staff Report 
Subject: Approval of Change Order #2 for StageFront for the AV upgrades at the Judicial 

Complex 

Author: Alison Bruton, Purchasing Agent 

Department: Court Services 

Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 

Item Description: Change Order for StageFront for the AV upgrades at the Judicial Complex 

 

Summary Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Change Order #2 for StageFront 

for the AV upgrades at the Judicial Complex 

 

Executive Summary/Background: 

 StageFront is currently contracted with Effingham County to provide AV upgrades to the 

Judicial Complex building. Change Order 1 was approved to convert the Community 

Room into a Courtroom.  

 The Court Report system that Stage Front included in their proposal was a Tascam 

system. Staff is having issues with this system, so Stage Front has provided Change 

Order 2. This will give a credit back to the County for the Tascam system and allow for a 

new BIS Digital system for all 5 rooms.  

o Credit back to the County: -$10,189.35  

 
o BIS Digital system: $27,999.63 

o Total charge for CO2: $17,810.28 

 This change order brings the overall contract amount to $576,290.23. 

 

Alternatives for Commission to Consider 

1. Approval of Change Order for StageFront for the AV upgrades at the Judicial Complex in 

the amount of $17,810.28 

2. Deny Change Order 

3. Take no action. 

 

Recommended Alternative: 1 

Other Alternatives: 2, 3 

Department Review: Finance, County Manager, Clerk of Court 

Funding Source: $540,000 currently budgeted in General Fund. Budget Amendment will be 

necessary to cover the additional cost. 

Attachments: Change Order for StageFront 

 

 

 

5 Tascam IF-DA2 $589.71 $2,948.55

5 Tascam SS-R250N $1,195.59 $5,977.95

5 Tascam US-4x4HR $252.57 $1,262.85

$10,189.35Total Credit

55

Item X. 5.



6 Southern Oaks Drive 
Savannah, GA 31405 

800.736.9242 
Stagefront.net 

2060 Northbrook Drive 
N. Charleston, SC 29406 

800.736.9242 
Stagefront.net 

11460 Maxwell Road 
Suite C 

Alpharetta, GA 30009 
800.736.9242 
Stagefront.net 

8/23/2023 

CHANGE ORDER 

Date:       C.O. Number:   

Original Contract Sum: $535,262.79 

Net Change by previously authorized change orders: $23,217.16 

Contract Sum prior to this change order: $558,479.95 

Contract will be increased/decreased by $17,810.28 
this order in the amount of: 

The new contract sum will be: $576,290.23 

The contract duration will be increased dependent on material availability. 

Change to scope of work details: 

This change order will remove the Tascam recorders that were initially provided for 
court reporter setups in each courtroom (Full credit applied) 
Equipment: Five Each – Tascam Solid State Recorder, Dante Audio for SS-R250N, & 
4x4 High Res USB Audio Interface 

Court reporter setup will be replaced with Bis Digital software on owner furnished PC’s 
in five courtrooms (Assembly, State, Sup 1-2, & Magistrate). 

We hereby agree to the above as an added/reduced project cost to be added/deleted 
to the original scope of work. 

Customer Representative_______________________ Date: ________________ 

Stage Front Representative _____________________ Date: ________________ 

02 

56

Item X. 5.



57

Item X. 6.



58

Item X. 6.



59

Item X. 6.



60

Item X. 6.



61

Item X. 6.



Staff Report            
 
Subject:  Rezoning (Second District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: MRD Partners, LLC / Nolan Andrews as Agent for Ronald V. Roberts & Barry 
Chenkin requests to rezone 18.5 acres from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1 to allow for warehouse development. Located 
at 4828, 4838, & 4884 McCall Road.  [Map# 450D Parcel# 4A, 4B & 5] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 18.5 acres from R-2 
& AR-1 to I-1 to allow for warehouse development, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts.  
• The applicant wishes to develop a small, multi-tenant “flex building” for industrial use. The estimated total 

building size is proposed to be 156,000 square feet. 
• The proposed site is bordered on two sides by the Gateway Industrial Park, which is zoned I-1. 
• The SE boundary of the proposed site is along Sweigoffer Creek which acts as a natural boundary, and 

separation for existing industrial use in the area, the concept plan shows a minimum 300’ buffer to the 
AR-zoned properties on the SE boundary. 

• Multiple adjacent residents on the NE project boundary, on the opposite side of McCall Rd, have written 
in support of the project and indicated a desire for similar rezoning of their own properties.   

• The sketch plan for this project, and a variance request to reduce the buffer along McCall Road, are 
planned to be heard at the September Planning Board meeting. 

• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion for approval. 
• The motion was seconded by Peter Higgins and carried unanimously. 

 

 
Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 18.5 acres from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1, with the following conditions: 
 
2. Deny the request for to rezone 18.5 acres from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat   5. Deed 
                           2. Ownership certificate/authorization   4. Aerial photograph  

 

62

Item XIV. 1.



63

Item XIV. 1.



64

Item XIV. 1.



65

Item XIV. 1.



66

Item XIV. 1.



67

Item XIV. 1.



68

Item XIV. 1.



69

Item XIV. 1.



70

Item XIV. 1.



71

Item XIV. 1.



72

Item XIV. 1.



73

Item XIV. 1.



74

Item XIV. 1.



75

Item XIV. 1.



76

Item XIV. 1.



77

Item XIV. 1.



78

Item XIV. 1.



Staff Report            
 
Subject:  2nd Reading – Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: MRD Partners, LLC / Nolan Andrews as Agent for Ronald V. Roberts & Barry 
Chenkin requests to rezone 18.5 acres from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1 to allow for warehouse development. Located 
at 4828, 4838, & 4884 McCall Road.  [Map# 450D Parcel# 4A, 4B & 5] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request to rezone 18.5 acres from R-2 
& AR-1 to I-1 to allow for warehouse development, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts.  
• The applicant wishes to develop a small, multi-tenant “flex building” for industrial use. The estimated total 

building size is proposed to be 156,000 square feet. 
• The proposed site is bordered on two sides by the Gateway Industrial Park, which is zoned I-1. 
• The SE boundary of the proposed site is along Sweigoffer Creek which acts as a natural boundary, and 

separation for existing industrial use in the area, the concept plan shows a minimum 300’ buffer to the 
AR-zoned properties on the SE boundary. 

• Multiple adjacent residents on the NE project boundary, on the opposite side of McCall Rd, have written 
in support of the project and indicated a desire for similar rezoning of their own properties.   

• The sketch plan for this project, and a variance request to reduce the buffer along McCall Road, are 
planned to be heard at the September Planning Board meeting. 

• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion for approval. 
• The motion was seconded by Peter Higgins and carried unanimously. 

 

 
Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 18.5 acres from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1, with the following conditions: 
 
2. Deny the request for to rezone 18.5 acres from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment 
 

79

Item XIV. 2.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

450D-4A, 4B & 5 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

450D-4A, 4B & 5 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, MRD PARTNERS, LLC / NOLAN ANDREWS AS AGENT FOR RONALD V. ROBERTS & BARRY 

CHENKIN has filed an application to rezone eighteen and fifty hundredths (18.5) +/- acres; from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1 to allow for a 

warehouse development; map and parcel number 450D-4A, 4B & 5, located in the 2nd commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 5, 2023 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on August 16, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on July 19, 2023; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT eighteen and fifty hundredths (18.5) +/- acres; map and parcel number 450D-4A, 4B & 

5, located in the 2nd commissioner district is rezoned from R-2 & AR-1 to I-1, with the following conditions: 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

80

Item XIV. 2.



Staff Report           

Subject:  Sketch Plan (First District)  
Author:  Chelsie Fernald, Planner II  
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Morgan Corp. request approval of a sketch plan for “Morgan Corp Office.” 
Located on Old River Road, zoned B-2. [Map# 329 Parcel# 41B] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of a sketch plan for “Morgan Corp 
Office.”  
 
Executive Summary/Background 

 The request for approval of a sketch plan is a requirement of Section 5.1 – Sketch Plan.  

The purpose of a sketch plan is to provide both the applicant and the county an opportunity 

to review the proposed development before significant financial resources have been 

invested. Therefore, the sketch plan does not require the certification of an engineer, 

surveyor, or other professional. Existing features, including water bodies, wetlands, and 

flood zone limits, are required to be surveyed for the sketch plan.  

 At the June 26, 2023 Technical Review Committee meeting, staff and the applicant 

discussed buffers, access management, wetlands, water availability and septic 

requirements, and development plan review requirements. 

 Morgan Corp is proposing a 10,000 sq. ft. office, and a 20,000 sq. ft. shop. to grow their civil 

construction company.    

 Access to this parcel will be on Old River Road, this access does align with the Savannah 

Portside International Park entrance.  

 There will be a 10’ vegetative buffer along Old River Road per Effingham County Code of 

Ordinance, 3.4.2 Adjacent public street buffers:  

All development excluding industrial development shall maintain a ten-foot wide 

landscaped buffer between any parking or loading area and an adjacent accessed public 

right-of-way (ROW). In single family subdivisions a ten-foot landscaped buffer must be 

maintained between any lot or internal street and any public collector or arterial ROW 

accessed from the subdivision. 

Where parcels abut a street without access to that street the buffer on that side of the 

parcel shall equal the required buffer for the use on the other side of the street. 

 Vegetative buffers along the commercially zoned parcel to the north are the required 15’ and 

30’ to the residentially zoned parcels to the west and south.  

 Mr. Alan Zipperer stated at the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting that this is the best 

use for this parcel and made a motion for approval with Staff Recommendations.   

 Mr. Brad Smith seconded, the motion carried unanimously.  

Alternatives  
1. Approve the sketch plan for “Morgan Corp Office”. 
2. Deny the sketch plan for “Morgan Corp Office”. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1. Sketch Plan Application 2. Sketch Plan  3. Aerial Photograph  

81

Item XIV. 3.



82

Item XIV. 3.



83

Item XIV. 3.



84

Item XIV. 3.



85

Item XIV. 3.



86

Item XIV. 3.



87

Item XIV. 3.



Staff Report          
 
 
Subject:  Rezoning (Second District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Brandon Peszynski requests a variance from Section 74.8, to allow for class 8 
parking at a residence. Located at 124 Maple Drive, zoned AR-1.  [Map# 450D Parcel# 34A] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request for a variance from Section 74.8, 
to allow for class 8 parking at a residence. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• Pursuant to Appendix C-Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Planning Board, Section 7.1.8, variances may 

only be granted if the following findings are made: 
That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, narrowness, or 

shallowness, of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions peculiar to the 
particular property, and that the unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not to circumstances 
or conditions generally created by the provisions of the zoning ordinance in the neighborhood or district 
in which the property is located; and  

That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that the property 
can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance, and that the authorization 
of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property.  

• Part II – Official Code, Section 74-8(a)(3) states that “The county prohibits the use of medium and heavy-
duty vehicles, defined as commercial vehicles class 6 through 13, on routes not listed as designated truck 
routes” 

• Section 74-8(d) makes exception for when it is necessary for the class 6-13 vehicle to utilize other roads for 
direct travel in the performance of a job, with proper documentation, Section 74-8(d)(4) provides for 
exemption for “bobtail truck, defined as only the tractor with no trailer and/or chassis attached, going to or 
from, and parking at the driver’s residence…”  

• Section 74-8(d)(4) was approved as a revision to the truck route ordinance in February, 2023 with 
(according to the Staff report) the specific intention to “…limit the impact of tractor-trailer trucks on 
neighborhood and county roads” 

• The applicant wishes to park his truck, with trailer attached, at his residence. The applicant’s address is 
approximately 1.5 miles from the nearest truck route. 

• Approval of this request would involve granting variance not only to the applicant’s residence, but to each 
County-maintained road en route.  

• The applicant has not provided evidence of any hardship as defined above. 
• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, multiple residents of surrounding properties voiced 

opposition to the variance application for reasons of: 
- Noise 
- Road damage 
- Safety 

• Alan Zipperer made a motion for denial. 
• The motion was seconded by Ryan Thompson and carried unanimously. 

 

 
 

88

Item XIV. 4.



Alternatives  
1. Approve the request for a variance, with the following conditions: 
 
2. Deny the request for a variance from Section 74.8. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  2    Other Alternatives:  1 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.    Variance application                        3. Site Plan 5. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

89

Item XIV. 4.



90

Item XIV. 4.



91

Item XIV. 4.



92

Item XIV. 4.



93

Item XIV. 4.



94

Item XIV. 4.



Staff Report          
 
 
Subject:  2nd Reading – Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Brandon Peszynski requests a variance from Section 74.8, to allow for class 8 
parking at a residence. Located at 124 Maple Drive, zoned AR-1.  [Map# 450D Parcel# 34A] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request for a variance from Section 74.8, 
to allow for class 8 parking at a residence. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• Pursuant to Appendix C-Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Planning Board, Section 7.1.8, variances may 

only be granted if the following findings are made: 
That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, narrowness, or 

shallowness, of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions peculiar to the 
particular property, and that the unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not to circumstances 
or conditions generally created by the provisions of the zoning ordinance in the neighborhood or district 
in which the property is located; and  

That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that the property 
can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance, and that the authorization 
of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property.  

• Part II – Official Code, Section 74-8(a)(3) states that “The county prohibits the use of medium and heavy-
duty vehicles, defined as commercial vehicles class 6 through 13, on routes not listed as designated truck 
routes” 

• Section 74-8(d) makes exception for when it is necessary for the class 6-13 vehicle to utilize other roads for 
direct travel in the performance of a job, with proper documentation, Section 74-8(d)(4) provides for 
exemption for “bobtail truck, defined as only the tractor with no trailer and/or chassis attached, going to or 
from, and parking at the driver’s residence…”  

• Section 74-8(d)(4) was approved as a revision to the truck route ordinance in February, 2023 with 
(according to the Staff report) the specific intention to “…limit the impact of tractor-trailer trucks on 
neighborhood and county roads” 

• The applicant wishes to park his truck, with trailer attached, at his residence. The applicant’s address is 
approximately 1.5 miles from the nearest truck route. 

• Approval of this request would involve granting variance not only to the applicant’s residence, but to each 
County-maintained road en route.  

• The applicant has not provided evidence of any hardship as defined above. 
• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, multiple residents of surrounding properties voiced 

opposition to the variance application for reasons of: 
- Noise 
- Road damage 
- Safety 

• Alan Zipperer made a motion for denial. 
• The motion was seconded by Ryan Thompson and carried unanimously. 

 

 
 

95

Item XIV. 5.



Alternatives  
1. Approve the request for a variance, with the following conditions: 
 
2. Deny the request for a variance from Section 74.8. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  2    Other Alternatives:  1 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.    Zoning Map Amendment 

96

Item XIV. 5.



: STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

450D-34A 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

450D-34A 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, BRANDON PESZYNSKI has filed an application for a variance, from section 74.8 to allow for parking of a 

class 8 truck at a residential property; map and parcel number 450D-34A, located in the 2nd commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 5, 2023 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on August 16, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on July 19, 2023; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT a variance from section 74.8 to allow for parking of a class 8 truck at a residential 

property; map and parcel number 450D-34A, located in the 2nd commissioner district is approved.  

 

  

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

97

Item XIV. 5.



Staff Report            
Subject:  Variance (Second District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Betty J. New requests a variance from Article III, Section 3.3.1(c), to allow for the 
placement of an accessory structure. Located at 202 Greene Drive, zoned AR-1. [Map# 465H Parcel# 42B] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request for a variance from Article III, 
Section 3.3.1(c), to allow for the placement of an accessory structure. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• Pursuant to Appendix C-Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Planning Board, Section 7.1.8, variances may 

only be granted if the following findings are made: 
That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, narrowness, or 

shallowness, of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions peculiar to the 
particular property, and that the unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not to circumstances 
or conditions generally created by the provisions of the zoning ordinance in the neighborhood or district 
in which the property is located; and  

That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that the property 
can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance, and that the authorization 
of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property.  

• Article III, Section 3.3.1(c) of Appendix C states that “An accessory structure shall not be less than ten feet 
from a principal structure”. The applicant is requesting reduction, to a 5-7 foot setback from the principal 
structure. 

• The applicant wishes to erect a 40 x 17 pole barn to shelter a boat. The length of the structure allows for 
conformance to all building setbacks, except between the accessory structure and the dwelling.  

• The property has a unique, angled shape, effectively bisecting what would otherwise be a sufficient rear 
yard to alter the orientation of the pole barn, allowing conformity. 

• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion for approval. 
• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith and carried unanimously. 

 
 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request for a variance. 
 
2. Deny the request for a variance.  
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1.   Variance application                        3. Site Plan 5. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

  

98

Item XIV. 6.



99

Item XIV. 6.



100

Item XIV. 6.



101

Item XIV. 6.



102

Item XIV. 6.



103

Item XIV. 6.



104

Item XIV. 6.



105

Item XIV. 6.



Staff Report            
Subject:  2nd Reading – Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Betty J. New requests a variance from Article III, Section 3.3.1(c), to allow for the 
placement of an accessory structure. Located at 202 Greene Drive, zoned AR-1. [Map# 465H Parcel# 42B] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request for a variance from Article III, 
Section 3.3.1(c), to allow for the placement of an accessory structure. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• Pursuant to Appendix C-Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Planning Board, Section 7.1.8, variances may 

only be granted if the following findings are made: 
That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity, narrowness, or 

shallowness, of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions peculiar to the 
particular property, and that the unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not to circumstances 
or conditions generally created by the provisions of the zoning ordinance in the neighborhood or district 
in which the property is located; and  

That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, there is no possibility that the property 
can be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance, and that the authorization 
of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property.  

• Article III, Section 3.3.1(c) of Appendix C states that “An accessory structure shall not be less than ten feet 
from a principal structure”. The applicant is requesting reduction, to a 5-7 foot setback from the principal 
structure. 

• The applicant wishes to erect a 40 x 17 pole barn to shelter a boat. The length of the structure allows for 
conformance to all building setbacks, except between the accessory structure and the dwelling.  

• The property has a unique, angled shape, effectively bisecting what would otherwise be a sufficient rear 
yard to alter the orientation of the pole barn, allowing conformity. 

• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Alan Zipperer made a motion for approval. 
• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith and carried unanimously. 

 
 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request for a variance. 
 
2. Deny the request for a variance.  
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives: 2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment 
  

106

Item XIV. 7.



: STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

465H-42B 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

465H-42B 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, BETTY J. NEW has filed an application for a variance, from required accessory structure setbacks; map and 

parcel number 465H-42B, located in the 2nd commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 5, 2023 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on August 16, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on July 19, 2023; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT a variance from required accessory structure setbacks; map and parcel number 465H-

42B, located in the 2nd commissioner district is approved.  

 

  

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

107

Item XIV. 7.



Staff Report            
 
Subject:  Rezoning (Third District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: George L. Oglesby request to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for 
the creation of a home site. Located at 8869 Highway 21 N. [Map# 229 Parcel# 1A] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres from 
AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for the creation of a home site, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. AR-1 requires a 
minimum lot size of 5 acres. AR-2 allows lots of one acre or more.   

• The applicant proposes to create a home site, approximately 3 acres in size, with a 60’ easement serving 
as access to Highway 21 North. 

• The nearest property of either size less than 10 acres, or zoning other than AR-1 is approximately 1.16 
miles away. Adjacent land use across the Screven County boundary appears to be agricultural. 

• While the NWI shows significant wetlands coverage, the proposed 3-acre lot could be further split in to 
three, 1-acre lots served by a private easement.  

• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, the applicant indicated that the 7.85 acres remaining 
AR-1 may be subdivided as an estate division at the time of the owner’s death. 

• Peter Higgins made a motion for approval, with the following conditions: 
1. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the 

rezoning can take effect. 
2. Further subdivision of any of the 10.85 acres shall be prohibited. 

• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith, and carried 4-1, Ryan Thompson opposing. 
 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres from AR-1 to AR-2, with the following condition: 

1. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the 
rezoning can take effect. 

2. Further subdivision of any of the 10.85 acres shall be prohibited. 

2. Deny the request to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres from AR-1 to AR-2. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  2    Other Alternatives: 1 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1.   Rezoning application and checklist 3. Plat   5. Deed 

2. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

 

108

Item XIV. 8.



109

Item XIV. 8.



110

Item XIV. 8.



111

Item XIV. 8.



112

Item XIV. 8.



113

Item XIV. 8.



114

Item XIV. 8.



115

Item XIV. 8.



116

Item XIV. 8.



117

Item XIV. 8.



118

Item XIV. 8.



 STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

229-1A 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

229-1A 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, GEORGE L. OGLESBY has filed an application to rezone three (3) +/- acres; from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for 

division of the property; map and parcel number 229-1A, located in the 3rd commissioner district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 5, 2023 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on August 16, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on July 19, 2023; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT three (3) +/- acres; map and parcel number 229-1A, located in the 3rd commissioner 

district is rezoned from AR-1 to AR-2, with the following conditions: 

1. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the rezoning can take effect. 

2. Further subdivision of any of the 10.85 acres shall be prohibited. 

 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

119

Item XIV. 9.



Staff Report            
 
Subject:  2nd Reading – Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: George L. Oglesby request to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres from AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for 
the creation of a home site. Located at 8869 Highway 21 N. [Map# 229 Parcel# 1A] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends denial of the request to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres from 
AR-1 to AR-2 to allow for the creation of a home site, with conditions. 
 
Executive Summary/Background  
• The request for rezoning is a requirement of Appendix C, Article IX-Amendments to Map or Text, Section 

9.  Zoning districts are described in Appendix C, Article V-Uses Permitted in Districts. AR-1 requires a 
minimum lot size of 5 acres. AR-2 allows lots of one acre or more.   

• The applicant proposes to create a home site, approximately 3 acres in size, with a 60’ easement serving 
as access to Highway 21 North. 

• The nearest property of either size less than 10 acres, or zoning other than AR-1 is approximately 1.16 
miles away. Adjacent land use across the Screven County boundary appears to be agricultural. 

• While the NWI shows significant wetlands coverage, the proposed 3-acre lot could be further split in to 
three, 1-acre lots served by a private easement.  

• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, the applicant indicated that the 7.85 acres remaining 
AR-1 may be subdivided as an estate division at the time of the owner’s death. 

• Peter Higgins made a motion for approval, with the following conditions: 
1. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the 

rezoning can take effect. 
2. Further subdivision of any of the 10.85 acres shall be prohibited. 

• The motion was seconded by Brad Smith, and carried 4-1, Ryan Thompson opposing. 
 

Alternatives  
1. Approve the request to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres from AR-1 to AR-2, with the following condition: 

1. Minor subdivision plat must be approved by Development Services and, and be recorded, before the 
rezoning can take effect. 

2. Further subdivision of any of the 10.85 acres shall be prohibited. 

2. Deny the request to rezone 3 of 10.85 acres from AR-1 to AR-2. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  2    Other Alternatives: 1 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
 
Attachments:  1.   Zoning Map Amendment 
 

120

Item XIV. 9.



Staff Report            
 
Subject:  Rezoning (Third District) 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Michael & Meredith Clark requests a variance from Section 3.21.1, to allow for 
occupation of a camper/RV during construction of a dwelling. Located at 892 Brogdon Road, zoned AR-1 
[Map# 319 Parcel# 1D] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request for a variance from Section 
3.21.1, to allow for occupation of a camper/RV during construction of a dwelling. 
 
Executive Summary/Background 
• Pursuant to Appendix C – Zoning Ordinance, Article III – General Provisions, Section 3.21.1 of the 

Effingham County, Georgia Code of Ordinances: … any owner of camping and recreational equipment, 
including but not limited to travel trailers, pick-up coaches, motorized homes, and boat trailers, may 
park or store such equipment on private residential property subject to the following conditions: Such 
parked or stored camping and recreational equipment shall never be occupied or used for living, 
sleeping, or housekeeping purposes. 

• The applicant has an active building permit (202301088) for a permanent dwelling, they wish to live on 
site during the construction of their home. 

• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Peter Higgins made a motion for approval with the 
following conditions: 
1. The duration of the occupation shall not be longer than twelve months from date of approval. 
2. The RV/Camper must have connection to permitted well and septic services. 

• The motion was seconded by Ryan Thompson and carried unanimously. 

 
Alternatives  

1. Approve the request for a variance from Section 3.21.1, with the following conditions: 
1. The duration of the occupation shall not be longer than twelve months from date of approval. 
2. The RV/Camper must have connection to permitted well and septic services. 

 
2. Deny the request for a variance from Section 3.21.1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.    Variance application                        3. Site Plan 5. Deed 

1. Ownership certificate/authorization 4. Aerial photograph 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121

Item XIV. 10.



122

Item XIV. 10.



123

Item XIV. 10.



124

Item XIV. 10.



125

Item XIV. 10.



126

Item XIV. 10.



: STATE OF GEORGIA 

EFFINGHAM COUNTY 

 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO. 

319-1D 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, MAP AND PARCEL NO.  

319-1D 

 

 AND TO REPEAL ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the Effingham County Board of Commissioners in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof: 

WHEREAS, MICHAEL & MEREDITH CLARK has filed an application for a variance, from section 3.21.1 to allow for 

occupation of a camper/RV during construction of a dwelling; map and parcel number 319-1D, located in the 3rd commissioner 

district, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 5, 2023 and notice of said hearing having been published in the 

Effingham County Herald on August 16, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Effingham County Planning Board, notice of said hearing having been 

published in the Effingham County Herald on July 19, 2023; and 

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED THAT a variance from section 3.21.1 to allow for occupation of a camper/RV during 

construction of a dwelling; map and parcel number 319-1D, located in the 3rd commissioner district is approved, with the following 

conditions:  

1. The duration of the occupation shall not be longer than twelve months from date of approval. 

2. The RV/Camper must have connection to permitted well and septic services. 

 

  

All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

This ______ day of ________________, 20____ 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

      EFFINGHAM COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

      BY:  _______________________________ 

               WESLEY CORBITT, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

ATTEST:       FIRST/SECOND READING:  ______________  

  

___________________________ 

STEPHANIE JOHNSON 

COUNTY CLERK 

127

Item XIV. 11.



Staff Report            
 
Subject:  2nd Reading – Zoning Map Amendment 
Author:  Katie Dunnigan, Zoning Manager 
Department:  Development Services 
Meeting Date: September 5, 2023 
Item Description: Michael & Meredith Clark requests a variance from Section 3.21.1, to allow for 
occupation of a camper/RV during construction of a dwelling. Located at 892 Brogdon Road, zoned AR-1 
[Map# 319 Parcel# 1D] 
 
Summary Recommendation 
Staff has reviewed the application, and recommends approval of the request for a variance from Section 
3.21.1, to allow for occupation of a camper/RV during construction of a dwelling. 
 
Executive Summary/Background 
• Pursuant to Appendix C – Zoning Ordinance, Article III – General Provisions, Section 3.21.1 of the 

Effingham County, Georgia Code of Ordinances: … any owner of camping and recreational equipment, 
including but not limited to travel trailers, pick-up coaches, motorized homes, and boat trailers, may 
park or store such equipment on private residential property subject to the following conditions: Such 
parked or stored camping and recreational equipment shall never be occupied or used for living, 
sleeping, or housekeeping purposes. 

• The applicant has an active building permit (202301088) for a permanent dwelling, they wish to live on 
site during the construction of their home. 

• At the August 16, 2023 Planning Board meeting, Peter Higgins made a motion for approval with the 
following conditions: 
1. The duration of the occupation shall not be longer than twelve months from date of approval. 
2. The RV/Camper must have connection to permitted well and septic services. 

• The motion was seconded by Ryan Thompson and carried unanimously. 

 
Alternatives  

1. Approve the request for a variance from Section 3.21.1, with the following conditions: 
1. The duration of the occupation shall not be longer than twelve months from date of approval. 
2. The RV/Camper must have connection to permitted well and septic services. 

 
2. Deny the request for a variance from Section 3.21.1. 
 
Recommended Alternative:  1    Other Alternatives:  2 
 
Department Review:  Development Services  FUNDING: N/A 
Attachments:  1.    Zoning Map Amendment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

128

Item XIV. 11.


	Top
	Item IX. 1.	CONSENT - Enterprise Vehicles
	1. Staff Report Enterprise
	Effingham County Board of Commissioners Fleet Proposal P1244411
	Effingham County - Fire Dept - Silverado 1500 - QUOTE 7438201

	Item IX. 2.	CONSENT - Guyton Probation Termination
	1. Staff Report Template
	Probation Services-Termination

	Item IX. 3.	Stormwater grant agreement amendment - Jody emailed me this and said she spoke with you about
	CIG Stormwater Agreement Amendent Staff Report 
	Extension 1_C25.Effingham.Larson.StormwaterMasterPlanY2

	Item X. 1.	Logistics Parkway ROW Dedication
	Staff Report_Logistics Parkway1
	OACC - roads drainage water sewer and lift station deed -
	Preliminary - Logistics Way Dedication Plat 7.27.23
	Close out Old Augusta Parkway

	Item X. 2.	Madrac Farms Assemblage
	Staff Report_Assemblage Permit Request_MADRAC_2023
	Madrac AP
	Madrac Sup

	Item X. 3.	Sewer Bypass Pump
	1. Staff Report Template
	3. Synergy Equipment PO template
	4. MWI PO template

	Item X. 4.	CO for Stormwater MP
	1. Staff Report Stormwater MP CO5
	Effingham Co SW MP Change Order No. 5 Master Plan Development and Add. Data Collection Deduct

	Item X. 5.	StageFront CO2
	1. Staff Report Template
	2299_CO-03_Effingham County_Tascam Swap for Bis Digital

	Item X. 6.	Revision to Development Services Schedule of Fees - Presenter will be Elizabeth Sapp
	Liz Staff Report
	Liz Checklist Fees

	Item XIV. 1.	1a. MRD Rezone
	1a.
	1

	Item XIV. 2.	1b. 2nd Reading MRD
	1b.
	450D-4A,4B&5_MRD Partners, LLC-Nolan Andrews_RZ

	Item XIV. 3.	Morgan Corp. Sketch Plan
	Presentments_09052023_Chelsie1
	329-41B_Morgan Corp_SK

	Item XIV. 4.	2a. Peszynski Variance
	2a.
	2

	Item XIV. 5.	2b. 2nd Reading Peszynski
	2b.
	450D-34A_Peszynski_V

	Item XIV. 6.	3a. New Variance
	3a.
	3

	Item XIV. 7.	3b Second Reading New
	3b.
	465H-42B_New_V

	Item XIV. 8.	4a. Oglesby Rezone
	4a.
	4

	Item XIV. 9.	4b. Second Reading Oglesby
	229-1A_Oglesby_RZ
	4b

	Item XIV. 10.	5a. Clark Variance
	5a.
	5

	Item XIV. 11.	5b Second Reading Clark
	319-1D_Clark_V
	5b.

	Bottom

